
  greenwoodmn.com

 

 

 

 

 
AGENDA 
Greenwood City Council Meeting 
 

Wednesday, January 2, 2019 
20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331  
 

The public is invited to speak when items come up on the agenda (3-minute limit).  
The public may speak regarding other items during Matters from the Floor (see below).  
Hearing devices available from recording technician.  

 

7:00pm OATH OF OFFICE: Councilmember Tom Fletcher, Councilmember Rob Roy 
 

7:05pm 1. CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE MEETING AGENDA 
 

7:05pm 2.   CONSENT AGENDA 
Consent Agenda items are considered to be routine and are approved through one motion with no discussion by the city council. 
Council members may remove any Consent Agenda item for discussion and separate consideration under Other Business. 

 

A. Approve: 12-05-18 City Council Meeting Minutes 
B. Approve: Nov Cash Summary Report 
C. Approve: Nov Certificates of Deposit Report 
D. Approve: Dec Verifieds, Check Register, Electronic Fund Transfers 
E. Approve: Jan Payroll Register 
F. Approve: Res 42-18, Variance Findings, Michael & Colleen Kroening, 5260 Meadville St 
G. Approve: Res 01-19, Setting City Dates for 2019 
H. Approve: Res 02-19, City Appointments & Assignments for 2019 
I. Approve: Res 03-19, Authorization to Send 2040 Comp Plan to Met Council 

 

7:10pm 3.   MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 
This is an opportunity for the public to address the council regarding matters not on the agenda. Comments are limited to  
3 minutes. Typically, the council will not take action on items presented at this time, but will refer items to staff for review, action, and / 
or recommendation for future council action.  

 

7:15pm 4.   PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS, GUESTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
A. City Engineer, Dave Martini: Potential Inflow & Infiltration Inspection Program  
B. Announcement: Greenwood Night at the Old Log Theatre, Lend Me a Tenor, 7:30pm, Friday 01-18-19 
C. Announcement: Mayors' Forum at the Southshore Center, 7pm, Thursday 01-24-19 

 

NONE 5.   PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

NONE 6.   ACTION RELATED TO PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

7:30pm 7.   PLANNING, ZONING & SUBDIVISION ITEMS 
A. Consider: Res 37-18, Variance Findings, Marcia & Jeffrey Fetters, 21200 Minnetonka Blvd 
B. Consider: Res 04-19, Preliminary Plat Application (subdivision) Findings, Lesley J. Adam,  

5155 Weeks Rd, 4940 St. Alban’s Bay Rd, and 4950 St. Alban’s Bay Rd 
C. Consider: Res 05-19 Conditional Use Permit Findings and Res 06-19 Variance Findings,  

Roland & Ranee Jacobus, 5290 Meadville St  
D. Discuss: Conditional Use Permit Request, Todd & Amy Wilkinson, 21800 Byron Cir  
E. Discuss: Potential Revisions to Tree Ordinance, Section 1140.80 

 

NONE 8.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

8:30pm 9.   NEW BUSINESS 
A. Consider: Request to Post No-Parking Signs by Meadville Lift Station 

 

NONE 10.  OTHER BUSINESS  
 

8:45pm 11.  COUNCIL REPORTS 
A. Conrad: Planning Commission 
B. Cook: LMCD, SABLID, Public Works Committee 
C. Fletcher: LMCC, Fire, Administrative Committee 
D. Kind: Police, Administrative Committee, Mayors’ Meetings, Website 
E. Quam: Minnetonka Community Education, Public Works Committee 

 

9:00pm 12. ADJOURNMENT  
 
Note: Photo will be taken of the new city council 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 2 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
Summary: The consent agenda typically includes the most recent council minutes, cash summary report, verifieds report, 
electronic fund transfers, and check registers. The consent agenda also may include the 2nd reading of ordinances that 
were approved unanimously by the council at the 1st reading. Council members may remove consent agenda items for 
further discussion. Removed items will be placed under Other Business on the agenda. 
 
Council Action: Required. Possible motion … 
 

1. I move the council approves the consent agenda items as presented. 
 



12-05-18 Greenwood City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 1 of 4 

MINUTES 
Greenwood City Council Meeting 
 

Wednesday, December 5, 2018 
20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE AGENDA 

 

 Mayor Kind called the meeting to order at 7:00pm. 
Members Present: Mayor Kind; Councilmembers Kristi Conrad, Bill Cook, Tom Fletcher, Bob Quam 
Staff Members Present: City Zoning Administrator Dale Cooney 

 

Motion by Kind to approve the agenda. Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0. 
  
2. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Approve: 11-07-18 City Council Meeting Minutes 
B. Approve: 11-13-18 Election Canvassing Meeting Minutes 
C. Approve: Oct Cash Summary Report 
D. Approve: Oct Certificates of Deposit Report 
E. Approve: Nov Verifieds, Check Register, Electronic Fund Transfers 
F. Approve: Nov Payroll Register 
G. Approve: Ord 285 & Summary Res 33-18, Re-establishing Section 925, Predatory Offenders 
H. Approve: 2019 License Applications 
 

Motion by Kind to move item 2C from the consent agenda to discuss under 10, move agenda item 7A to the 
consent agenda, and to approve the consent agenda items. Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0.  
 

3.   MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 
 

None   
 

4.   PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS, GUESTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

A. Presentation: Res 34-18, Resolution of Appreciation & Commendation for Councilman Bob Quam 
 

Motion by Cook that the city council approves resolution 34-18, a resolution of appreciation and 
commendation for Councilman Bob Quam as written. Second by Conrad. Motion passed 5-0.  
 

View the presentation at LMCC-TV.org.  
 

B. Announcement: Planning Commission Term Expirations 
 

No council action taken. View the announcement at LMCC-TV.org.  
 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. Truth in Taxation Hearing: 2019 Budget & Tax Levy 
 

Motion by Fletcher to open the public hearing. Second by Conrad. Motion passed 5-0.  
 

No one spoke during the public hearing. 
 

Motion by Cook to close the public hearing. Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0.  
 
6. ACTION RELATED TO PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. Consider: Res 35-18, Final 2019 Tax Levy; Res 36-18, Final 2019 Budget 
 

Motion by Fletcher that the council (1) adopts resolution 35-18 approving the 2018 tax levy in the amount 
of $637,825 to be collected in 2019 and directs the city clerk to send the information to Hennepin County; 
and (2) adopts resolution 36-18 approving the 2019 general fund budget in the amount of $777,463.  
Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0.  
 
 



12-05-18 Greenwood City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 2 of 4 

7. PLANNING & ZONING ITEMS 
 

A. Consider: Res 37-18, Variance Findings, Marcia & Jeffrey Fetters, 21200 Minnetonka Blvd 
 

Motion by Quam to continue consideration of resolution 37-18 to the 01-02-19 council agenda per the 
written request of the applicant. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0.  

 
B. Consider: Res 38-18, Conditional Use Permit Findings, Diane Wold, 4980 Meadville St 
 

Motion by Quam that the city council adopts resolution 38-18 laying out the findings of fact APPROVING 
the conditional use permit request of Diane Wold to impact 10,368 square feet of surface area and 12,280 
cubic yards of volume at 4980 Meadville Street, as proposed. I further move that the council directs the city 
clerk to mail a copy of the findings to the applicant and the DNR, and place an Affidavit of Mailing for each 
of the mailings in the property file. Second by Cook. Motion passed 4-1 with Fletcher voting nay.  

 
C. Consider: Res 39-18, Simple Subdivision Findings, Kyle Hunt & Partners, 5135 and 5125 Weeks Rd 
 

Approved as part of the consent agenda. Consent agenda motion by Kind that the the city council  
(1) adopts resolution 39-18 as revised by the city attorney laying out the findings of fact APPROVING the 
simple subdivision request of Kyle Hunt & Partners for the properties at 5135 and 5125 Weeks Road, as 
proposed; (2) directs the city clerk to mail a copy of the findings to the applicant and the DNR, and place 
an Affidavit of Mailing for each of the mailings in the property file. Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
D. Consider: Res 40-18, Conditional Use Permit Findings, Cisco & Kim Skanson, 5175 Queens Cir 
 

Motion by Kind that the city council adopts resolution 40-18 laying out the findings of fact APPROVING the 
conditional use permit requests of Cisco and Kim Skanson to impact 5,481 square feet of surface area and 
130 cubic yards of soil volume, and to install an in-ground pool for the property at 5175 Queens Circle, as 
proposed. I further move that the council directs the city clerk to mail a copy of the findings to the 
applicant and the DNR, and place an Affidavit of Mailing for each of the mailings in the property file. 
Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0.  

 
E. Consider: Res 41-18 & 42-18, CUP & Variance Findings, Michael & Colleen Kroening, 5260 Meadville St 
 

David Steingas, 21500 Fairview Street, builder representative for the Kroenings presented revised plans based on 
feedback from the planning commission which reduces the total volume to 48,215 cubic feet (a multiplier of 6.67 x 
7,234 sf lot size). In response to a question from councilman Cook, Steingas stated that they would be open to 
reducing the width of the front garage eave from 2 feet to 1 foot to move it further away from the front property line.  
 

Mark Setterholm, 5250 Meadville Street, one of the neighbors adjacent to the subject property, stated that he is 
supportive of the project because the proposed cottage-style will fit with the neighborhood. 
 

Colin Sievers, 5270 Meadville Street, the other neighbor adjacent to the subject property, stated that he is 
supportive of the project. 

 

Motion by Kind that the city council (1) adopts resolution 41-18 laying out the findings of fact APPROVING 
the conditional use permit request of Michael and Colleen Kroening for 5260 Meadville Street, as proposed;  
(2) directs staff to revise resolution 42-18 to lay out the findings of fact APPROVING the setback, 
impervious surface area, and building volume variance requests per the council discussion and place on 
the 01-02-19 consent agenda for approval; (3) directs the city clerk to mail a copy of the findings to the 
applicant and the DNR, and place an Affidavit of Mailing for each of the mailings in the property file. 
Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0.  

 
F. 1st Reading: Ord 282 & Summary Res 43-18, Amending Section 1140.19, Grading 
 

Motion by Cook that the city council (1) approves the first reading of ordinance 282 draft 11-21-18 
amending the city’s zoning code section 1140.19 regarding grading regulation & restrictions as written; (2) 
waives the second reading; (3) approves summary resolution 43-18; and (4) directs that summary 
resolution 43-18 be submitted to the Sun-Sailor for publication. Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0.  

 
 
 
 
 



12-05-18 Greenwood City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 3 of 4 

G. Consider: Final Draft of 2040 Comprehensive Plan for Submission to Met Council.  
 

Motion by Fletcher that the city council (1) approves the 10-20-18 draft of the 2040 comprehensive plan 
with the SWMP revisions sent to the city council via email (2) authorizes Councilman Cook and Mayor Kind 
to approve other updates as needed; and (3) directs staff to forward the draft to the Met Council by the  
12-31-18 deadline. Second by Quam Motion passed 5-0.  
 

8.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

A. None 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Consider: Year-End Fund Transfers 
 

Motion by Kind that the council (1) approves the following budgeted 2018 fund transfers: 
 

a. $12,500 from 605-49300-720 Marina Enterprise Fund Transfer Out 
to 101-39200 General Fund Interfund Operating Transfer In 

b. $3,860 from 605-49300-721 Marina Enterprise Fund Transfer Out 
to 101-39201 General Fund Administrative Expense Reimbursement 

c. $10,090 from 602-43200-720 Sewer Enterprise Fund Transfer Out 
to 101-39202 General Fund Administrative Expense Reimbursement 

d. $2,573 from 502-43200-720 Stormwater Special Revenue Fund Transfer Out 
to 101-39203 General Fund Administrative Expense Reimbursement 

e. $10,000 from 101-49000-500 General Fund Bridge Transfer  
to 403-39200 Bridge Capital Project Fund 

 
and (2) authorizes the following fund transfer to make the Road Fund whole: 
 
$70,000 from 101-43200-500 General Fund Transfer Out 
to Road Fund 404-36230 
 
Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0.  

 
10.  OTHER BUSINESS 

 

2C: Consider: Oct Cash Summary Report 
 

Motion by Fletcher to approve the October Cash Summary report now that the previous motion was 
approved to make the Road Fund whole. Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0.  

A.  
11.  COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

A. Conrad: Planning Commission 
 

No report since planning commission items were discussed during the meeting.  
 
B. Cook: Lake Minnetonka Conservation District, Public Works Committee, St. Alban's Lake Improvement District 

 

No council action taken. View report at LMCC-TV.org. 
 

C. Fletcher: Lake Minnetonka Communications Commission, Fire, Administrative Committee 
 

No council action taken. View report at LMCC-TV.org. 
 

D. Kind: Police, Administrative Committee, Mayors’ Meetings, Website 
 

Motion by Kind to authorize up to $2000 for the installation of a concrete pad and garbage can along the 
LRT trail near the Sleepy Hollow bench. Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0. 
 

View report at LMCC-TV.org. 
 

E. Quam: Minnetonka Community Education, Public Works Committee  
 

No council action taken. View report at LMCC-TV.org. 
 



12-05-18 Greenwood City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 4 of 4 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion by Kind to adjourn the meeting at 8:24pm. Second by Fletcher. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
This document is intended to meet statutory requirements for city council meeting minutes. A video recording was made of the meeting, which provides a 
verbatim account of what transpired. The video recording is available for viewing on LMCC TV channel 8 for 1 month, at www.lmcc-tv.org for 1 year, and 
on DVD at the city office (permanent archive).  



GREENWOOD CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

Report Date:  2/28/1711/30/18

Acct # Bank Date Term Maturity Rate Amount

x237 Bridgewater Bank 11/08/18 18 Month 05/05/20 2.48% 130,813.89$        
x238 Bridgewater Bank 05/08/18 10 Month 03/08/19 1.49% 130,978.29$        
x239 Bridgewater Bank 05/08/18 12 Month 05/08/19 1.74% 131,142.80$        
x240 Bridgewater Bank 05/08/18 16 Month 09/08/19 1.74% 131,142.80$        
x241 Bridgewater Bank 05/08/18 18 Month 11/08/19 2.08% 131,366.69$        
x242 Bridgewater Bank 05/08/18 22 Month 03/08/20 2.08% 131,366.69$        

TOTAL 786,811.16$        
CITY COUNCIL POLICY: 09-03-14 Motion by Roy to authorize the administrative committee to open CDs with a maximum initial maturity of
25 months with a combined maximum total CD balance of $500,000 at Alerus Bank or Bridgewater Bank. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0.

11-02-16 Motion by Fletcher that the city council authorizes an increase from $500,000 to $600,000 for the city's maximum balance of certificate 
of deposit. Second by Roy. Motion passed 5-0.

10-04-17 Motion by Fletcher that the city council approves the August Certificates of Deposit Report and increases the maximum combined
balance for Certificates of Deposit from $600,000 to $700,000. Second by Kind. Motion passed 4-0.

05-02-18 Motion by Conrad that the Greenwood city council (1) authorizes the administrative committee to move forward with the Bridgewater 
Bank CD staging concept; and (2) authorizes a maximum of $800,000 to be invested in CDs. Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0.



`

Variance with Variance with 
Month 2017 2018 Prior Month Prior Year
January $1,146,895 $1,109,319 -$137,944 -$37,576
February $1,162,355 $1,112,677 $3,358 -$49,678
March $1,180,149 $1,093,832 -$18,845 -$86,317
April $1,073,772 $1,026,926 -$66,906 -$46,846
May $1,042,937 $1,015,367 -$11,559 -$27,570
June $1,216,488 $963,832 -$51,535 -$252,656
July $1,469,592 $1,343,594 $379,762 -$125,998
August $1,430,595 $1,334,231 -$9,363 -$96,364
September $1,306,495 $1,336,282 $2,051 $29,787
October $1,238,961 $1,063,710 -$272,572 -$175,251
November $965,784 $1,056,473 -$7,237 $90,689
December $1,247,263 -$1,056,473 -$1,247,263

Alerus Bank Checking $2,764
Bridgewater Bank Checking $23,558
Bridgewater Bank Money Market $246,339
Bridgewater Bank CD's $783,812

$1,056,473
ALLOCATION BY FUND
General Fund $371,400
Special Project Fund $27,800
General Fund Designated for Parks $14,580
Bridge Capital Project Fund $171,304
Road Improvement Fund ($15,389)
Stormwater Fund $28,041
Sewer Enterprise Fund $363,723
Marina Enterprise Fund $95,064

$1,056,473

$0 

$200,000 

$400,000 

$600,000 

$800,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,200,000 

$1,400,000 

$1,600,000 

City of Greenwood 
Monthly Cash Summary 

2017 

2018 



M = Manual Check, V = Void Check  

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Check Register - Summary Report Page:     1 

Dec 19, 2018  03:12pm 
Check Issue Date(s): 12/01/2018 - 12/31/2018  

 
Per Date Check No Vendor No Payee Check GL Acct Amount

12/18 12/05/2018 11174 879 VOID - VALLEY PAVING INC 101-20100 .00 
12/18 12/05/2018 11175 879 VALLEY PAVING INC 404-20100 58,829.94 
12/18 12/19/2018 11176 51 BOLTON & MENK, INC. 602-20100 5,723.00 
12/18 12/19/2018 11177 762 CATALYST GRAPHICS INC 101-20100 99.00 
12/18 12/19/2018 11178 Information Only Check  V101-20100 .00 
12/18 12/19/2018 11179 9 CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 101-20100 7,188.58 
12/18 12/19/2018 11180 761 DEBRA KIND 101-20100 40.36 
12/18 12/19/2018 11181 822 ECM PUBLISHERS INC 101-20100 380.80 
12/18 12/19/2018 11182 68 GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 602-20100 21.60 
12/18 12/19/2018 11183 75 HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER 101-20100 69.73 
12/18 12/19/2018 11184 766 HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER 101-20100 166.23 
12/18 12/19/2018 11185 898 JOHN & VERONICA LANG 001-20100 9.99 
12/18 12/19/2018 11186 3 KELLY LAW OFFICES 101-20100 425.00 
12/18 12/19/2018 11187 886 KENNETH N. POTTS, P.A. 101-20100 400.00 
12/18 12/19/2018 11188 105 METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERVICES 602-20100 2,323.07 
12/18 12/19/2018 11189 145 XCEL ENERGY 101-20100 426.24 

          Totals: 76,103.54 

           Dated: ______________________________________________________

           Mayor: ______________________________________________________

  City Council: ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

City Recorder: ______________________________________________________



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Payment Approval Report - for Council Approval Page:     1 

Input Date(s): 12/01/2018 - 12/31/2018 Dec 19, 2018  03:13pm 
 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt

BOLTON & MENK, INC.
0226504 11/30/201851 BOLTON & MENK, INC. 2018 DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 915.00 
0226505 11/30/20182018 MISC DRAINAGE 82.00 
0226506 11/30/20182018 MISC ENGINEERING 1,724.00 

2018 MISC ENGINEERING 90.00 
0226507 11/30/20182018 SEWER IMPROVEMENTS 826.00 
0226508 11/30/20182018 STREET IMPROVEMENTS 1,964.00 
0226509 11/30/20182018 SWMP UPDATE 122.00 

          Total BOLTON & MENK, INC. 5,723.00 

CATALYST GRAPHICS INC
22565 12/13/2018762 CATALYST GRAPHICS INC CITY NEWSLETTER 99.00 

          Total CATALYST GRAPHICS INC 99.00 

CITY OF DEEPHAVEN
DEC 2018 12/01/20189 CITY OF DEEPHAVEN RENT & EQUIPMENT 487.45 

Postage 77.52 
COPIES 197.10 
SEWER 1,099.85 
SNOW PLOWING/SANDING/SALT 2,670.30 
WEED/TREE/MOWING 1,178.40 
PARK MAINTENANCE 98.20 
ELECTIONS 196.40 
STORM SEWERS 196.40 
ZONING 956.97 
COUNCIL DESK SIGNS 29.99 

          Total CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 7,188.58 

DEBRA KIND
12 10 18 12/10/2018761 DEBRA KIND BOB QUAM'S RECEPTION 40.36 

          Total DEBRA KIND 40.36 

ECM PUBLISHERS INC
652578 11/29/2018822 ECM PUBLISHERS INC LEGAL NOTICE 59.50 
652580 11/29/2018LEGAL NOTICE 59.50 

65259 11/29/2018LEGAL NOTICE 59.50 
656132 12/13/2018LEGAL NOTICE 95.20 
656133 12/13/2018LEGAL NOTICE 107.10 

          Total ECM PUBLISHERS INC 380.80 

GOPHER STATE ONE CALL
8110420 11/30/201868 GOPHER STATE ONE CALL Gopher State calls 21.60 

          Total GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 21.60 

HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER
11 30 18 11/30/201875 HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURE TRUTH IN TAX NOTICES 69.73 
12 10 18 12/10/2018766 HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURE AUTOMARK/DS200 MNTNCE 25.00 

ELECTION SUPPLIES 42.32 
POSTAGE 98.91 

          Total HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER 235.96 

JOHN & VERONICA LANG



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Payment Approval Report - for Council Approval Page:     2 

Input Date(s): 12/01/2018 - 12/31/2018 Dec 19, 2018  03:13pm 
 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt

11 28 18 11/28/2018898 JOHN & VERONICA LANG UB PMT REFUND 9.99 

          Total JOHN & VERONICA LANG 9.99 

KELLY LAW OFFICES
X660 12/06/20183 KELLY LAW OFFICES GENERAL LEGAL 425.00 

          Total KELLY LAW OFFICES 425.00 

KENNETH N. POTTS, P.A.
12 01 18 12/01/2018886 KENNETH N. POTTS, P.A. PROSECUTION SVCS 400.00 

          Total KENNETH N. POTTS, P.A. 400.00 

METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERVICES
0001089843 12/04/2018105 METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERV Monthly wastewater Charge 2,323.07 

          Total METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERVICES 2,323.07 

VALLEY PAVING INC
10 30 18 10/30/2018879 VALLEY PAVING INC MTKA BLVD MILL & OVERLAY 58,829.94 

MTKA BLVD MILL & OVERLAY 58,829.94 -
103018 10/30/2018MTKA BLVD MILL & OVERLAY 58,829.94 

          Total VALLEY PAVING INC 58,829.94 

XCEL ENERGY
11 26 18 11/26/2018145 XCEL ENERGY SIREN 3.92 

4925 MEADVILLE STREET * 8.80 
Sleepy Hollow Road * 8.80 
Street Lights * 404.72 

          Total XCEL ENERGY 426.24 

Total Paid: 76,103.54 
Total Unpaid:  -     

Grand Total: 76,103.54 



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Check Register Page:     1 

Pay Period Date(s): 12/02/2018 to 01/01/2019 Dec 19, 2018  01:36pm 
 

Pay Per Check Check Description GL Amount
Date Jrnl Date Number Payee Emp No Account

01/01/19 PC 01/01/19 1011901 CONRAD, KRISTI 39 001-10100 286.53 
01/01/19 PC 01/01/19 1011902 COOK, WILLIAM B. 37 001-10100 286.53 
01/01/19 PC 01/01/19 1011903 Fletcher, Thomas M 33 001-10100 186.53 
01/01/19 PC 01/01/19 1011904 Kind, Debra J. 34 001-10100 429.80 
01/01/19 PC 01/01/19 1011905 ROY, ROBERT J. 38 001-10100 286.53 

          Grand Totals: 1,475.92 



 

Greenwood Resolution 42-18   |   Page 1 of 4 
 

RESOLUTION NO 42-18 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA  
ACTING AS THE BOARD OF APPEALS & ADJUSTMENTS 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
In Re: Application of Michael and Colleen Kroening  for the property at 5260 Meadville Street for a variance from 

Greenwood ordinance code sections 1120.15 and 1140.18 to encroach into the front yard setback, exceed the 
maximum permitted impervious surface area, exceed the maximum above grade building volume in order to build 

an attached garage with living space above. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Michael and Colleen Kroening , applicants, are the owners of property commonly known as 5260 Meadville Street, 
Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-33-0005) being real property in Hennepin County Minnesota and 
legally described as follows:  

The North 50 feet of Lot 2, SOLBERGS POINT 

; and 
WHEREAS, application was made for variance to zoning code sections 1120.15 and 1140.18 in conjunction with building 
an attached garage with living space above that encroaches into the front yard setbacks, exceeds the maximum permitted 
impervious surface area for the property, and exceeds the maximum allowable building volume for the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing was published, notice given to neighboring property owners, and a public hearing 
was held before the planning commission to consider the application; and 
 
WHEREAS, public comment was taken at the public hearing before the planning commission on November 14, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city council of the city of Greenwood has received the staff report, the recommendation of the planning 
commission, and considered the application, the comments of the applicants, and the comments of the public. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments 
does hereby make the following: 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. That the real property located at 5260 Meadville Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-33-0005) 
is a single-family lot of record located within the R-1 district. 

 
2. The applicants propose an attached garage with living space above that would encroach 27.6 feet into the front yard 

setback. The property currently hosts a one-stall, detached garage that encroaches as much as 29 feet into the front 
yard setback. The right-of-way is offset from the actual location of the street. In this case, the existing garage is 
approximately 30 feet from the edge of the paved surface. 
 

3. The applicants propose to exceed the maximum permitted impervious surface area by 10.3%. The property is 
currently at 45.9% impervious area, and is nonconforming in this respect. The applicants propose to reduce the 
impervious area to 43.1%. The sliding scale calculation from Section 1120.15 limits the maximum impervious surface 
area on the property to 32.76%. The revised building and driveway footprint would be less than the existing garage 
driveway, and concrete apron footprint.  In the case of nonconforming impervious areas, Section 1176.07.05 (Subd. 4) 
allows driveways to be exchanged for structural impervious surfaces. 
 

4. The applicants propose to exceed the maximum permitted building volume by 4,811 cubic feet. The proposed addition 
would expand the building volume on the property from 33,521 cubic feet to 48,215 cubic feet. The cubic footage 
limitation for the property is 43,404. The lower level of the house is largely exposed on three sides, creating a 
circumstance that creates a uniquely large amount of above grade building volume relative to the house size. 
 

5. Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5 & 6 states: 

“Subd. 4. Practical Difficulties Standard. “Practical difficulties,” as used in connection with the granting of a variance, 
means: 



 

Greenwood Resolution 42-18   |   Page 2 of 4 
 

 

(a) that the property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by the zoning 
ordinance; 

(b) the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the landowner; 
(c) and the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality 
 
Economic considerations alone shall not constitute practical difficulties.  
 
Subd. 5. Findings. The board, in considering all requests for a variance, shall adopt findings addressing the following 
questions: 
 

(a) Is the variance in harmony with the purposes and intent of the ordinance? 
(b) Is the variance consistent with the comprehensive plan? 
(c) Does the proposal put property to use in a reasonable manner? 
(d) Are there unique circumstances to the property not created by the landowner? 
(e) Will the variance, if granted, alter the essential character of the locality? 
 
Subd. 6. Practical Difficulties Considerations. When determining reasonable manner or essential character, the board 
will consider, but will not be limited to, the following: 
 

(a) Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property.  
(b) Unreasonably increase the congestion in the public street.  
(c) Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety.  
(d) Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the neighborhood or in any way be contrary to 

the intent of this ordinance.” 
 

6. The applicants assert that the proposed variance request complies with the practical difficulties standards in 
Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5, & 6. 
 

7. The planning commission discussed the requests of Michael and Colleen Kroening and on a 5-0 vote recommended 
the council approve the requests to vary from city code Section 1140.15 to encroach into the front yard setback and 
exceed the maximum allowable impervious surface area, as proposed, for the property at 5260 Meadville Street, 
Greenwood, Minnesota 55331.  
 
The proposal meets the practical difficulties standards outlined in section 1155.10(4) in that:  
 
(a) The variance(s), if granted, will be in harmony and keeping with the spirit and intent of the zoning ordinance since 

the intent of the zoning district is to provide a use zone for low-density single-family dwellings that will be 
exclusive of other types of use for the purpose of creating a quality semi-estate district, and the proposal is 
consistent with that intent. 
  

(b) The variance, if granted, will be consistent with the comprehensive plan’s guiding use for the subject property in 
that the comprehensive plan, through reasonable accommodation, encourages the maintenance and 
improvement of older homes consistent with the city’s variance procedures. 
 

(c) Though the property owner's proposed manner of use of the property is not permitted by the zoning ordinance 
without a variance, the proposed manner of use is reasonable because the variances reduce impervious areas 
and reduce the severity of the existing encroachments from the public right-of-way. 
 

(d) The plight of the landowner-applicant is due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the 
landowner because the public right-of-way is significantly offset from the street, situating the proposed garage 
approximately 31 feet from the edge of the road surface. The existing garage on the property currently 
encroaches into the setback and the proposed setback for the attached garage is a reduction of the 
nonconformity. The property is currently at 45.9% impervious area, and is nonconforming in this respect, and the 
applicants propose to reduce the impervious surface area to 43.1%. 
 

(e) The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality since the proposal is of a scope and 
scale comparable to other properties within the community. 
 

(f) The variance, if granted, will not: 
a. Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property; 
b. Unreasonably increase the congestion in the public street; 



 

Greenwood Resolution 42-18   |   Page 3 of 4 
 

c. Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety; or 
d. Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the neighborhood or in any way be 

contrary to the intent of this ordinance. 
 

8. The planning commission, on a 5-0 vote, recommended the council deny the request of Michael and Colleen Kroening  
to vary from city code Section 1140.18 to exceed the maximum permitted building volume, as proposed, for the 
property at 5260 Meadville Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331. 
 
The motion was based on the practical difficulties standards outlined in section 1155.10(4) in that:  

 
a) The variance, if granted, will NOT be in harmony and keeping with the spirit and intent of the zoning ordinance 

because the purpose of the ordinance is to encourage both new houses and expansions or alterations to existing 
houses to be in scale with existing homes while preserving the green space and openness of the community. 
While some kind of variance from the limitations of the ordinance might be justified in this case, the proposed 
scale of the addition is not in keeping with the spirit and intent of the ordinance. 

b) The variance, if granted, will be consistent with the comprehensive plan which encourages, through reasonable 
accommodation, the maintenance and improvement of existing homes consistent with our variance procedures. 

c) Though the property owner’s proposed manner of use of the property is not permitted by the zoning ordinance 
without a variance, the proposed manner of use is NOT reasonable because: it greatly expands the 
nonconforming volume of the house and the encroachment area. While some level of encroachment might be 
reasonable in this situation based on the existing nonconformity, the scale of the proposed expansion does not 
attempt to work within reasonable constraints.  

d) The plight of the landowner-applicant is NOT due to circumstances unique to the property and IS created by the 
landowner because: the house is currently served by a tuck-under garage and a detached garage. Creating an at-
grade garage with living space above might be a reasonable upgrade for the property, but the property is already 
served by an attached and a detached garage. The applicant has not demonstrated why the existing configuration 
is untenable and unique enough to require the additional nonconforming volume and encroachment. 

e) The variance, if granted, WILL alter the essential character of the locality, because: the proposed expansion 
would create significant additional structural encroachment and exceed the create excessive building volume 
relative to the small lot size. 

f) The variance, if granted, will not: 
i. Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property; 
ii. Unreasonably increase the congestion in the public street; 
iii. Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety; or 
iv. Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the neighborhood or in any way be 

contrary to the intent of this ordinance. 
 

9. Based on the foregoing, the city council finds that the request to vary from city code Section 1120.15 to encroach into 
the front yard setback and exceed the maximum permitted impervious surface area; and to vary from city code 
Section 1140.18 to exceed the maximum allowable building volume for the proposed attached garage with living 
space above meets the practical difficulties standards outlined in section 1155.10(4) in that:  
 
(a) The variance(s), if granted, will be in harmony and keeping with the spirit and intent of the zoning ordinance since 

the intent of the zoning district is to provide a use zone for low-density single-family dwellings that will be 
exclusive of other types of use for the purpose of creating a quality semi-estate district, and the proposal is 
consistent with that intent. 
  

(b) The variance, if granted, will be consistent with the comprehensive plan’s guiding use for the subject property in 
that the comprehensive plan, through reasonable accommodation, encourages the maintenance and 
improvement of older homes consistent with the city’s variance procedures. 
 

(c) Though the property owner's proposed manner of use of the property is not permitted by the zoning ordinance 
without a variance, the proposed manner of use is reasonable because the variances reduce impervious areas 
and reduce the severity of the existing encroachments from the public right-of-way. The variance to exceed the 
maximum permitted  building volume is reasonable given the scale of the expansion and the volume limitations 
due to the small property size. The expansion is attempting to work within the given constraints of the existing 
house and property. 
 



 

Greenwood Resolution 42-18   |   Page 4 of 4 
 

(d) The plight of the landowner-applicant is due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the 
landowner because the public right-of-way is significantly offset from the street, situating the proposed garage 
approximately 31 feet from the edge of the road surface. The existing garage on the property currently 
encroaches into the setback and the proposed setback for the attached garage is a reduction of the 
nonconformity. The property is currently at 45.9% impervious area, and is nonconforming in this respect, and the 
applicants propose to reduce the impervious surface area to 43.1%. The lower level of the house is largely 
exposed on three sides, creating a circumstance that creates a uniquely large amount of above grade building 
volume relative to the house size. 
 

(e) The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality since the proposal is of a scope and 
scale comparable to other properties within the community. 
 

(f) The variance, if granted, will not: 
i. Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property; 
ii. Unreasonably increase the congestion in the public street; 
iii. Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety; or 
iv. Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the neighborhood or in any way be 

contrary to the intent of this ordinance. 
 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

Based upon the foregoing findings of fact, the city council acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments makes the 
following conclusions of law: 
 
The applicant has made an adequate demonstration of facts meeting the standards of section 1155.10 necessary for the 
grant of variances from Section 1120.15 Subd. 2(c) and Section 1140.18 and therefore: 
 
A.   A variance from section 1120.15 to construct an attached garage with living space above that encroaches 27.6 feet 

into the minimum required front yard setback and exceeds the maximum permitted impervious surface area by 
10.3% should be APPROVED. 
 

B.   A variance to section 1140.18 of the ordinance to exceed the maximum allowable building volume by 4,811 cubic 
feet for the property at 5260 Meadville Street should be APPROVED. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 
Appeals & Adjustments: 
 
That the application of Michael and Colleen Kroening for the property at 5260 Meadville Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 
55331 for:  
 
A. A variance from section 1120.15 to construct an attached garage with living space above that encroaches 27.6 feet 

into the minimum required front yard setback and exceeds the maximum permitted impervious surface area by 10.3% 
is APPROVED. 

 
B. A variance to section 1140.18 of the ordinance to exceed the maximum allowable building volume by 4,811 cubic feet 

for the property at 5260 Meadville Street is APPROVED. 
 

PASSED this 2nd day of January, 2019 by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 
Appeals & Adjustments for the city of Greenwood, Minnesota. 
 
___ AYES   ___ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Dana Young, City Clerk 



Application Deadline Sun Sailor                
Publish Date

Planning Commission 
Public Hearing

Council Packet 
Submission Deadline

Council Packet      
Posted Online City Council Meeting

Wed (4 weeks before 
PC meeting)

Thu (13 days before 
PC meeting) 7pm, 2nd Wednesday Fri (12 days before        

CC meeting)
Sun (10 days before  

CC meeting) 7pm, 1st Wednesday

December 21, 2018 December 23, 2018 January 2, 2019
December 12, 2018 December 27, 2018 January 9, 2019 January 25, 2019 January 27, 2019 February 6, 2019
January 16, 2019 January 31, 2019 February 13, 2019 February 22, 2019 February 24, 2019 March 6, 2019
February 13, 2019 February 28, 2019 March 13, 2019 March 22, 2019 March 24, 2019 April 3, 2019

March 13, 2019 March 28, 2019 April 10, 2019 April 19, 2019 April 21, 2019 May 1, 2019
April 10, 2019 April 25, 2019 May 8, 2019 May 24, 2019 May 26, 2019 June 5, 2019
May 15, 2019 May 30, 2019 June 12, 2019 June 22, 2018 June 23, 2019 July 9, 2019 Tue
June 12, 2019 June 27, 2019 July 10, 2019 July 26, 2019 July 28, 2019 August 7, 2019
July 17, 2019 August 1, 2019 August 14, 2019 August 23, 2019 August 25, 2019 September 4, 2019

August 14, 2019 August 29, 2019 September 11, 2019 September 20, 2019 September 22, 2019 October 2, 2019
September 11, 2019 September 26, 2019 October 9, 2019 October 25, 2019 October 27, 2019 November 6, 2019

October 16, 2019 October 31, 2019 November 13, 2019 November 22, 2019 November 24, 2019 December 4, 2019
November 13, 2019 November 28, 2019 December 11, 2019 December 21, 2019 December 22, 2019 January 2, 2020 Thu
December 11, 2019 December 26, 2019 January 8, 2020 January 24, 2020 January 26, 2020 February 5, 2020

Date Time
February 13, 2019 8pm

March 6, 2019 6pm
April 11, 2019 6pm
April 25, 2019 6pm
May 25, 2019 8am

August 7, 2019 6pm
September 4, 2019 6pm
October 31, 2019 4pm
December 4, 2019 7pm

ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota, this 2nd day of January 2019.

There were ___ AYES and ___ NAYS.

CITY OF GREENWOOD

By: Attest:
Debra J. Kind, Mayor                                              Dana H. Young, City Clerk

During December council meeting

Be it resolved that the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota approves the following dates for                                                                                 
variance / conditional use permit / subdivision applications, publication of notices, planning commission meetings, and city council meetings:                      

All meetings are held in the Deephaven council chambers, 20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331. Dates may change due to lack of quorums.

Be it resolved that the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota approves the following additional dates:

Worksession: Budget & Fees
Worksession: Budget & Fees
Fall Sales Ratio Meeting with Assessors
Budget Public Comment Opportunity

Notes

Before March council meeting
2nd Thursday in April
4th Thursday in April
3rd Saturday in May

2nd Wed in Feb
Pre-Board Worksession with Assessors

Resolution 01-19
City of Greenwood Dates for 2019

Before August council meeting
Before September council meeting
Last Thur in Oct or 1st Thur in Nov

Local Board of Appeal & Equalization Meeting
Subsequent LBAE Meeting
Spring Clean-Up Day

Joint Worksession



 

Resolution 02-19 – City of Greenwood 2019 Appointments & Assignments 
 

Be it resolved that the city council of Greenwood, Minnesota approves the following appointments and assignments for 01-02-19 through 01-01-20. 
 

OFFICE & DESIGNATIONS 2018 HOLDER 2019 HOLDER 
Administrative Committee Deb Kind, Tom Fletcher Deb Kind, Tom Fletcher 
Accountant CliftonLarsonAllen CliftonLarsonAllen 
Animal Enforcement Officer South Lake Police Department South Lake Police Department 
Assessor Hennepin County Hennepin County 
Attorney Mark Kelly, Bob Vose (alternate) Mark Kelly, Bob Vose (alternate) 
Attorney - Conduit Financing Projects Jennifer Hanson Jennifer Hanson 
Attorney - Prosecutor Ken Potts Ken Potts 
Bank Signatures Kind, Fletcher, Courtney Kind, Fletcher, Courtney 
Building Official Lenny Rutledge (City of Minnetonka) Lenny Rutledge (City of Minnetonka) 
Clerk Dana Young Dana Young 
Depositories Bridgewater Bank, Allerus Bank Bridgewater Bank, Allerus Bank 
Engineer Bolton & Menk (Dave Martini) Bolton & Menk (Dave Martini) 

Fire Board Representative – 4th Wednesdays (Jan, Mar, May, Jul, Sep, Nov) Tom Fletcher, Bob Quam (alt.) 
Bill Cook (2nd alt.) 

Tom Fletcher, Rob Roy (alt.) 
Bill Cook (2nd alt.) 

Forester / Certified Tree Inspector Manuel Jordan  Manuel Jordan  
Lake Minnetonka Communications Commission (LMCC) Representative - 
2 reps (1 elected official), meets 2nd Thursdays (Feb, Apr, May, Jul, Aug, Oct, Dec) Tom Fletcher, Deb Kind Tom Fletcher, Deb Kind 

Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (LMCD) Rep - 2nd & 4th Wednesdays Bill Cook (3yr term expires 1/31/20)  Bill Cook (3yr term expires 1/31/20)  
Marina Clerk Dana Young Dana Young 
Mayor Pro-Tem Bob Quam Tom Fletcher 
Minnetonka Community Education (MCE) Advisory Council 
Representative - meets 5 Mondays (Jan, Mar, May, Oct, Nov)  Bob Quam Rob Roy 

Newspapers 
Sun-Sailor 
Finance & Commerce (alternate) 
Star Tribune (alternate) 

Sun-Sailor 
Finance & Commerce (alternate) 
Star Tribune (alternate) 

Planning Commissioners and City Council Liaison – 3rd Wednesdays  
 

A-1 Dean Barta (6/18-3/20) A-1 Dean Barta (6/18-3/20) 
A-2 David Steingas (10/16-3/20) A-2 David Steingas (10/16-3/20) 
A-3 Kelsey Nelson (11/18-3/20) A-3 Kelsey Nelson (11/18-3/20) 
B-1 Pat Lucking (2/01-3/19) B-1 Pat Lucking (2/01-3/19) 
B-2 Jennifer Gallagher (9/16-3/19) B-2 Jennifer Gallagher (9/16-3/19) 
Alt-1 Vacant (___-3/20) Alt-1 Vacant (___-3/20) 
Alt-2 Vacant (___-3/19) Alt-2 Vacant (___-3/19) 
Alt-3 Kristi Conrad (council liaison) Alt-3 Kristi Conrad (council liaison) 

Public Safety City Administrator Representative (police and fire) Dana Young Dana Young 
Public Works Committee (roads, sewer, stormwater, etc.) Bob Quam, Bill Cook Deb Kind, Bill Cook 
Responsible Authority (Govt. Data Practices Act) Dana Young Dana Young 
St. Alban’s Bay Lake Improvement District Ex-Officio Director Bill Cook Bill Cook 
South Lake Minnetonka Police Department (SLMPD) Coordinating 
Committee Representative (must be mayor, meets quarterly) Deb Kind, Bob Quam (alt.) Deb Kind, Tom Fletcher (alt.) 

Treasurer Mary Courtney Mary Courtney 
Utility Billing Clerk Deborah Hicks Deborah Hicks 
Weed Inspector (must be mayor), Assistant Weed Inspector Deb Kind, John Menzel (assistant) Deb Kind, John Menzel (assistant) 
Zoning Administrator Dale Cooney Dale Cooney 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA that any and all commissioners, appointees, 
representatives, delegates, or other non-elected officials of the city shall hold their official status or membership on a basis subject to resolution, 
subject to reconsideration, and / or removal at the insistence of the city council. This resolution is enacted pursuant to the codes of the city. 
 

ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota this 2nd day of January, 2019. 
 

There were ___ AYES and ___ NAYS. 
 

By: _____________________________________    Attest: _____________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor, City of Greenwood  Dana H. Young, City Clerk, City of Greenwood 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
City of Greenwood  
Resolution 03-19 
 
A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR THE CITY OF GREENWOOD AND AUTHORIZING 
SUBMITTAL THE METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Greenwood has amended the Comprehensive Plan in accordance with the requirements of the 
Metropolitan Land Planning Act and Metropolitan Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing has been held in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 462.352 to review, comment 
and adopt amendments to the Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 473.858, Subd. 2, the City of Greenwood has submitted the 
plan to adjacent and affected jurisdictions for review and comment at least six months prior to submission of the plan to 
the Metropolitan Council. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Greenwood, that the Comprehensive Plan is 
hereby adopted and approved for submission to the Metropolitan Council for comment and approval. 
 
ADOPTED by the city council of Greenwood, Minnesota this 2nd day of January, 2019. 
 
__ AYES   ___ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________ Attest: __________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor        Dana H. Young, City Clerk 
 
 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 4A 

Agenda Date: 01-02-19 
Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: City Engineer Dave Martini: Potential Inflow & Infiltration Inspection Program 
 
Summary: The city engineer will attend the 01-02-19 city council meeting to discuss his attached letter regarding a potential 
inflow and infiltration inspection program.  
 
For the city council's reference, below are fund balances as of 11-30-18. These funds may be used for any city purpose. 
 

 $363,723 Sewer Enterprise Fund (interfund transfer OUT code 602-43200-720,  
  I/I capital outlay code 602-43200-530). 
 

 $28,041 Stormwater Fund (interfund transfer OUT code ________) 
 

The city council also may use the below budgeted contingency funds for any city purpose.   
 

 $4,000 2019 Contingency Budget (General Fund code 101-49000-439) 
 

In addition, below is the General Fund Reserve balance as of 12-31-17. Reserve funds may be used for any city purpose. 
 

 $599,432 General Fund Reserves (interfund transfer OUT code 101-43200-500) – This number is approximately  
  84% of operating expenditures. Goal is 35-50%. 
   
Council Action: No action required. Potential motions ... 
 

1. I move the city council authorizes $_______ from the _______ fund, to be spent on the following project(s): 
_____________. 

 

2. I move the city council authorizes a transfer of $_______ from the _______ fund to the _______ fund,  
to be spent on the following project(s): _____________. 

 

3. Do nothing or other motion ??? 



 

H:\GRWD\C13115468\1_Corres\C_To Others\2018-12-20 Sanitary Sewer I & I Summary.docx 

 

December 20, 2018 

 

City of Greenwood 

Attn: Dana Young 

20225 Cottagewood Road 

 

RE: Sanitary Sewer I & I Summary 

 

Honorable Mayor and City Council: 

 

Over the past several years, the City has engaged in several activities to maintain its sanitary sewer 
system and to identify and correct sources of inflow and infiltration.  It has also applied for and 
received grant money from the Metropolitan Council to help offset the costs related to this work.  A 
summary of the work that has been performed since 2012 is as follows: 
 
2012 

• Cleaning and televising 
2013 

• Sealing open joints and cracks in mainline pipes 
• Sealing joints and cracks in sewer manholes 
• Installing short section liners in mainline pipes 
• Replacing manhole top sections 
• Raising manhole tops above low-lying areas 
• Implementation of sump pump certification program 

2015 
• Smoke testing to identify illegal connections to the sewer system 

2016 
• Raising lift station lids above low-lying areas 
• Met Council surcharge requirements were satisfied 

2017 
• Applied for and received current bi-annual I & I Grant Funding 

 
2019 

• The City is currently enrolled in the Met Council I & I Grant program and has an obligation 
to spent $50,840 before November 1, 2019, of which the City will be reimbursed $25,420.   

• The proposed scope for improvements to be completed in 2019 includes manhole and lift 
station sealing along with locating and raising manholes that have been buried. 

 
Sump Pump Inspections 
Since significant sources of inflow and infiltration can be located on private property, it is our 
understanding that the City is considering a sump pump inspection program.  The discharge of clear 
water into the sanitary sewer system is a violation of the City Code.  Therefore, it is appropriate for 
the City to inspect connections in basements to ensure that existing sump pump pits are properly 
connected to discharge outside of the building.  Every house, building, and business in the City 
should be inspected with the goal of removing clear water connections from the sanitary sewer 
system. 



Sanitary Sewer I & I Summary 

December 20, 2018 

 

H:\GRWD\C13115468\1_Corres\C_To Others\2018-12-20 Sanitary Sewer I & I Summary.docx 

 

 
Since the City is currently committed to a specific scope of work to fulfill its obligations for the Met 
Council I & I Grant Program, the costs associated with a sump pump inspection program are not 
eligible for cost sharing now.  Therefore, it is recommended that the City wait until it is approved 
for a new grant before implementing the program.  We anticipate that the City will be eligible for 
funding again in 2019.  With that said, we anticipate the following work plan to assist the City with 
this program when it is implemented: 
 
Work Plan 
To initiate the program, a notification will be sent out to let property owners know about the 
inspection program.  After the initial notification, Bolton & Menk will begin by going door to door.  
These door to door inspections are the quickest and most cost-effective way to inspect many 
buildings in a short time.  Buildings with a correctly installed system will be issued a “passed 
inspection” document.  Buildings that receive a “failed inspection” notice will be given a specified 
time, as established by the City Council, to correct the issue and schedule a new inspection. 
 
At properties where the owner is not available when the inspector stops by, a door hanger notice 
will be left with a number to call to make an appointment for the inspection.  Appointments will be 
scheduled for weekdays and/or Saturdays as necessary.  To ensure compliance, we recommend 
that the City require that inspections be scheduled within a specified period and that the City 
consider a surcharge fee for properties that fail to schedule an inspection.  All buildings should be 
inspected even if there is not a sump pump or sump pit. 
 
Based on utility records, the City has approximately 320 properties that will need to be inspected.  
Assuming, on average, inspections can be completed at a rate of 3 per hour, we anticipate a fee of 
approximately $15,000 to $20,000 to perform the inspections and manage the program.  However, 
it should be noted, that the fee can vary based on the cooperation of property owners and how 
efficiently inspections can be grouped together.   To make the scheduling and management of the 
program more manageable, we recommend that the City inspect one sewer district at a time (See 
attached map). 
 
Please let me know if you have questions or need additional information. 
 

Sincerely, 

Bolton & Menk, Inc. 

David P. Martini 

Principal Engineer 

 





  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 7A 

Agenda Date: 01-02-19 

Prepared by Dale Cooney & Deb Kind 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consider: Res 37-18, Findings for Variance Request, Marcia and Jeffrey Fetters, 21200 Minnetonka Blvd. 
 
Summary:	Copies of the application materials and staff report are attached reference. Notice of the public hearing was 
published in the Sun-Sailor newspaper on 08-30-18. The planning commission held a public hearing at their 09-12-18, 
meeting. The planning commission considered public comment, applicant’s comments, application materials, and staff 
reports when making their recommendation (see planning commission action below). The city council must incorporate 
city code section 1155.10 variance criteria as well as any conditions in the motion.  
 
Planning Commission Action on 09-12-18:  
 

Motion by Barta to recommend denial of the request as proposed based on the recommendation and findings 
of staff. Motion was seconded by Gallagher. Motion carried 3-0.  

 
City Council Action on 10-03-18:  
 

Motion by Fletcher that the city council directs city staff to exercise the city’s option to take 60 additional 
days to process the variance application of Marcia and Jeffrey Fetters, 21200 Minnetonka Boulevard, by 
mailing written notice and placing an Affidavit of Mailing in the property file. The written notice shall state the 
reason for the extension is because the applicants request that we hold off and give them a bit more time to 
look at engineering and review their plans. Second by Conrad. Motion passed 3-0. 

City Council Action on 12-05-18:  
 

Motion by Quam to continue consideration of resolution 37-18 to the 01-02-19 council agenda per the written 
request of the applicant. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0.  

Update: The Fetters have installed a stormwater management system. The city engineer reviewed the as-built plans, 
inspected the site, and determined that the applicant meets / exceeds the city code requirements for the stormwater 
management system. Once the property owner records a maintenance agreement with the county, all city code 
requirements will be met to secure a certificate of occupancy. As of the January council packet deadline, the Fetters have 
not withdrawn their variance application.  

Key Dates: 
Application complete:    August 20, 2018 
Notice of Public Hearing published:  August 30, 2018 
Planning Commission Public Hearing:  September 12, 2018 
City Council Consideration:   October 3, 2018 
60-Day Deadline:    October 19, 2018 
120-Day Deadline:    December 18, 2018 
Delayed Deadline Per Applicant's Request: January 2, 2019 
 
Council Action: The city council must take action by 01-02-19 unless the applicant withdraws their application or 
requests an extension in writing. Suggested motions … 
 
1. I move the city council adopts resolution 37-18 laying out the findings of fact DENYING the variance request of Marcia 

and Jeffrey Fetters for a variance from the stormwater management requirements of Section 1140.17 at 21200 
Minnetonka Boulevard, as proposed. I further move that the council directs the city clerk to mail a copy of the findings 
to the applicant and the DNR, and place an Affidavit of Mailing for each of the mailings in the property file.  
 

2. Other motion ???  
 
Note: MN statue 15.99 requires a council decision within 60 days. The council may approve or modify a request based on verbal findings of fact and the 
applicant may proceed with their project. However, if the council denies the request, the council must state in writing the reasons for denial at the time 
that it denies the request. The council may extend the 60-day time limit by providing written notice to the applicant including the reason for the extension 
and its anticipated length (may not exceed 60 additional days unless approved by the applicant in writing). 
 



 

Greenwood Resolution 37-18   |   Page 1 of 3 
 

RESOLUTION NO 37-18 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA  
ACTING AS THE BOARD OF APPEALS & ADJUSTMENTS 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
DENYING 

In Re: Application of Marcia and Jeffrey Fetters for the property at 21200 Minnetonka Boulevard for a variance 
from Greenwood ordinance code section 1140.17 requiring stormwater mitigation. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Marcia and Jeffrey Fetters, applicants, are the owners of property commonly known as 21200 Minnetonka Boulevard, 
Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-13-0017) being real property in Hennepin County Minnesota and 
legally described as follows:  

Lots 1, 2, and 3, Lot 30 except the Southerly 15 feet thereof, Lot 31, Block 13, Minnetonka Manor 

WHEREAS, application was made for variance to zoning code section 1140.17 in conjunction with the construction of a 
new house on the property where the impervious surface expansion triggered stormwater mitigation requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing was published, notice given to neighboring property owners, and a public hearing 
was held before the planning commission to consider the application; and 
 
WHEREAS, public comment was taken at the public hearing before the planning commission on September 12, 2018; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the city council of the city of Greenwood has received the staff report, the recommendation of the planning 
commission, and considered the application, the comments of the applicants, and the comments of the public. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments 
does hereby make the following: 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. That the real property located at 21200 Minnetonka Boulevard, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-42-
0040) is a single-family lot of record located within the R-1A district. 
 

2. The applicants seek a variance for the required stormwater mitigation on the property. Section 1140.17 of the city 
code requires stormwater mitigation for any impervious surface expansion of 200 square feet or more. In conjunction 
with the construction of a new house and driveway on the property, the impervious surface area of the property 
expanded from 2,026 square feet to 4,346 square feet for an expansion in impervious surface area of 2,320 square 
feet. The applicants are requesting not to provide mitigation for the property. 
 

3. Performance criteria for stormwater mitigation includes the option of providing volume control to handle a 2 inch rain 
event for the expanded impervious surface area. Stormwater mitigation would need to accommodate a volume 
equivalent to 387 cubic feet. The applicants had originally proposed a raingarden in the front yard to accommodate 
452 cubic feet of volume. The additional runoff from the impervious areas on the property would drain primarily 
towards the Woods Court cul-de-sac. 
 

4. Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5 & 6 states: 

“Subd. 4. Practical Difficulties Standard. “Practical difficulties,” as used in connection with the granting of a variance, 
means: 
 

(a) that the property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by the zoning 
ordinance; 

(b) the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the landowner; 
(c) and the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality 
 
Economic considerations alone shall not constitute practical difficulties.  



 

Greenwood Resolution 37-18   |   Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Subd. 5. Findings. The board, in considering all requests for a variance, shall adopt findings addressing the following 
questions: 
 

(a) Is the variance in harmony with the purposes and intent of the ordinance? 
(b) Is the variance consistent with the comprehensive plan? 
(c) Does the proposal put property to use in a reasonable manner? 
(d) Are there unique circumstances to the property not created by the landowner? 
(e) Will the variance, if granted, alter the essential character of the locality? 
 
Subd. 6. Practical Difficulties Considerations. When determining reasonable manner or essential character, the board 
will consider, but will not be limited to, the following: 
 

(a) Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property.  
(b) Unreasonably increase the congestion in the public street.  
(c) Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety.  
(d) Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the neighborhood or in any way be contrary to 

the intent of this ordinance.” 
 

5. The applicants assert that the proposed variance request complies with the practical difficulties standards in 
Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5, & 6. 
 

6. The planning commission, on a 3-0 vote, recommended the council deny the request of Marcia and Jeffrey Fetters to 
vary from city code section 1140.17 stormwater management requirements, as proposed, for the property at 21200 
Minnetonka Boulevard, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331. The motion was based on the following findings: 
 
a) The variance, if granted, will NOT be in harmony and keeping with the spirit and intent of the zoning ordinance. 

The purpose of the ordinance is to protect and safeguard the health, safety, and welfare of the public by 
regulating stormwater runoff rates and volumes that can lead to flooding, flood damage, and erosion. Granting the 
variance would lead to increased runoff volumes from the expanded impervious areas on the property which is 
not in harmony with the ordinance. 

b) The variance, if granted, will NOT be consistent with the comprehensive plan which states that the city will protect 
natural drainage ways and water courses from accelerated storm water run-off or constriction in conjunction with 
the development, redevelopment or expansion of housing. 

c) Though the property owner's proposed manner of use of the property is not permitted by the zoning ordinance 
without a variance, the proposed manner of use is reasonable because: the proposed hardcover expansion is 
relatively small compared to what could be built per zoning code requirements and the overall stormwater volume  
increase is equally modest based on the overall size of the property. 

d) The plight of the landowner-applicant is NOT due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the 
landowner because: there is adequate space on the property to accommodate the required runoff volumes via a 
mitigation system. The applicants make the claim that the location of the outlet in the rear yard would disperse 
stormwater runoff “harmlessly over a large portion of our woods”, however to meet the ordinance requirements 
the applicants would need to demonstrate that the rate of runoff for the equivalent of at least a 2-inch per hour 
rainfall event for the proposed impervious surface expansion so that the rate does not increase as a result of the 
project. That information has not been provided. Also, the ordinance does not make exceptions for low impervious 
surface area properties, and the Fetters request is based on circumstances created by the new construction 
expansion of impervious areas on their property. 

e) The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality, because: the proposed expansion 
would remain consistent with the scope and scale of the surrounding properties. While the water volumes off of 
the property will be more than existing, it is not expected to be of an amount that would change the essential 
character of the locality. 

f) The variance, if granted, will not: 
i. Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property; 
ii. Unreasonably increase the congestion in the public street; 
iii. Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety; or 
iv. Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the neighborhood or in any way be 

contrary to the intent of this ordinance. 
 



 

Greenwood Resolution 37-18   |   Page 3 of 3 
 

7. Based on the foregoing, the city council determined that the variance request DOES NOT comply with the practical 
difficulties standards in Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5, & 6. 
 

 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

Based upon the foregoing findings of fact, the city council acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments makes the 
following conclusions of law: 
 
The applicant has NOT made an adequate demonstration of facts meeting the standards of section 1155.10 necessary for 
the granting of variances from section 1140.17 and therefore variances from the stormwater management requirements of 
the section 1140.17 of city ordinance be DENIED. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 
Appeals & Adjustments: 
 
That the application of Marcia and Jeffrey Fetters for the property at 21200 Minnetonka Boulevard, Greenwood, 
Minnesota 55331 for variances from the stormwater management requirements of section 1140.17 is DENIED. 
 
PASSED this __ day of ____, 2019 by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of Appeals 
& Adjustments for the city of Greenwood, Minnesota. 
 
 
___ AYES   ___ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Dana Young, City Clerk 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 7B 

Agenda Date: 01-02-19 

Prepared by Dale Cooney 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consider: Res 04-19, Findings for preliminary plat subdivision request, Lesley J. Adam, consultant for the 
homeowners at 5155 Weeks Road, 4940 St. Albans Bay Road, and 4950 St. Albans Bay Road. 

Summary:	Copies of the application materials and staff report are attached reference. Notice of the public hearing was 
published in the Sun Sailor newspaper on 11-29-18. The planning commission held a public hearing at their 12-12-18, 
meeting. The planning commission considered public comment, applicant’s comments, application materials, and staff 
reports when making their recommendation (see planning commission action below). The city council must incorporate 
city code section 600.00 simple subdivision criteria as well as any conditions in the motion.  

Planning Commission Action: Motion by Steingas to recommend approval of the request based on the recommendation 
and findings of staff. Motion was seconded by Nelson. Motion carried 3-0.  

Key Dates: 
Application complete:    November 15, 2018 
Notice of Public Hearing published:  November 29, 2018 
Planning Commission Public Hearing:  December 12, 2018 
City Council Decision:    January 2, 2019 
120– Day Deadline:    March 15, 2019 
 
City Council Action: Final action required by March 15, 2019. Potential motions… 
 
1. I move the city council adopts resolution 04-19 laying out the findings of fact APPROVING the preliminary plat 

subdivision request of Lesley J. Adam to reconfigure the property lines for the properties at 5155 Weeks Road, 4940 
St. Albans Bay Road, and 4950 St. Albans Bay Road, as presented. I further move that the council directs the city 
clerk to mail a copy of the findings to the applicant and the DNR, and place an Affidavit of Mailing for each of the 
mailings in the property file. 
 

2. I move the city council directs staff to draft FINDINGS FOR DENIAL of the preliminary plat subdivision request of 
Lesley J. Adam to reconfigure the property lines for the properties at 5155 Weeks Road, 4940 St. Albans Bay Road, 
and 4950 St. Albans Bay Road, to be considered at the February 6, 2019 city council meeting. 
 

3. Other motion … 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

Agenda Number: 7B 

Agenda Date: 01-02-19 

STAFF REPORT 
 

 
Agenda Item: Consider preliminary plat application (subdivision) request of Lesley J. Adam, consultant for the 
homeowners, to reconfigure the property lines for the properties at 5155 Weeks Road, 4940 St. Albans Bay Road, and 
4950 St. Albans Bay Road. 
 
Summary:	Lesley J. Adam is working with the property owners to reconfigure the property lines for the properties at 5155 
Weeks Road, 4940 St. Albans Bay Road, and 4950 St. Albans Bay Road. No additional lots are proposed as a part of this 
request. Subdivisions are regulated by Chapter 6 of the city code, and the proposal will be required to go through the 
platting process with a public hearing by the planning commission at the preliminary plat phase. 
 
Zoning Compliance: 
The proposed lot line reconfiguration is within the R-1 zoning district. The applicant has submitted a survey with the 
proposed lot reconfiguration. See attached aerial image for existing conditions. Essentially, the property at 4940 St. 
Albans Bay Road (the Dunn property) would be eliminating its lake access and transferring that portion of their property to 
4950 St. Albans Bay Road (the Wetterlin/Inman property). The Wetterlin/Inman property would be transferring its existing 
lake access to the Frauenshuh property at 5155 Weeks Road. The proposed subdivision would not create or intensify any 
nonconformities. 
 

 
Existing Lot 

Area 
(sf) 

Proposed 
Lot Area 

(sf) 

Lot 
Width 

Proposed 
Impervious 

Surface Area 

Front 
Setback 

Side Setbacks 
(ft) 

Lake 
Setback 

Required 15,000 -- 75 30% 30 15 50’ 

4940 St. Albans 
Bay Road 110,698 74,407 245 

(street) 17.1% >30 107.2(W) / 14.9 
(E)* 

N/A(43.2 
rear) 

4950 St. Albans 
Bay Road 63,179 80,960 47.5 

(lake) 15.3% 45 >15 (W) / 12.3* 
(E) 

>50 

5155 Weeks 
Road 32,196 50,235 158 

(lake) 18.5 >30 >15  (W) / 
1.3* (E) 89 

*Existing legal nonconformity not impacted by subdivison. 
 
Lot Size and Shape: 
Per the subdivision code: “At least 2 sides of all lots shall each be at least 100 feet in length. Lots shall be at least 100 feet 
wide abutting either the street or the lake. Lot lines shall not be drawn in irregular shapes for the purpose of circumventing 
this requirement.” 4950 St. Albans Bay Road (the Wetterlin/Inman property) is currently nonconforming at the street and 
the lake and will remain so. The remaining two properties conform to the lot standards. (Note that this code requirement is 
different from, and exceeds the minimum lot width requirement of the zoning code.) The lots exceed lot depth 
requirements. The property at 4940 St. Albans Bay Road (the Dunn property) is currently nonconforming for lakeshore, 
with only 47.5 feet. That nonconformity will be eliminated as part of this proposal. The property at 4950 St. Albans Bay 
Road (the Wetterlin/Inman property) is also currently nonconforming for lakeshore, with only 47.5 feet. The lot line 
reconfiguration will maintain the nonconformity, albeit with a different piece of land. 
 
Access: 
Subdivision code requires that “All lots shall abut on a publicly dedicated or private street.” Proposed lots would meet this 
requirement. 
 
Impervious Area: As proposed, all properties are within the required 30% imperious surface area limitation. No 
hardcover expansion is currently proposed. 
 
Structures and nonconformities: The proposed subdivision would eliminate the west side yard setback nonconformity 
for 5155 Weeks Road. Both 4950 St. Albans Bay Road (the Wetterlin/Inman property) and 5155 Weeks Road (the 
Frauenshuh property) have a legal nonconforming east side yard setbacks which are not impacted by the subdivision 
proposal. There is also a legal nonconforming shed at 4940 St. Albans Bay Road (the Dunn property) that encroaches 
into the lake yard setback that is not impacted by the subdivision proposal. 

 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

Trees and Grading: No tree removal or grading alteration is proposed. 
 
Easements: Various drainage and utility easements for the current properties will remain in place until such time as those 
easements are vacated. While there is no requirement that the easements be vacated prior to lot line reconfiguration, staff 
would recommend that this be addressed in the near future as such easements can be problematic for the future sale or 
construction on the property. 

Park Dedication: 
Park dedication land or fees are typically required during the subdivision process when additional lots are created that would 
generate additional demands on the city’s park system and the fee or dedication must bear a rough proportionality to the 
need created by the proposed subdivision or development. Since no additional lots are being created, park dedication fees 
do not apply in this particular application. 

Variances and Exceptions: 
As with administering the zoning code, the city may also permit variances as part of the subdivision standards. Section 
600.35. of the Subdivision chapter states: “Where there are practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships in the way of 
carrying out the strict letter of the provisions of this ordinance, the city council shall, upon an affirmative vote of at least 3/5 
of the total membership of such council, have the power to vary the requirements of this ordinance in harmony with the 
general purpose and intent hereof, so that the public health, safety and general welfare may be secured and substantial 
justice done.” 
  
Review Process:  
Preliminary Plat: State law requires action within 120 days of a Preliminary Plat application. Much like other zoning 
applications, the Planning Commission must hold a public hearing and make a recommendation to the City Council. 
 
Final Plat: Applicant must apply for Final Plat within 6 months of Preliminary Plat approval. Action must be taken within 60 
days of a Final Plat application. No public hearing is required, and the Planning Commission does not review the 
application for Final Plat. The city must approve the Final Plat if all conditions of the Preliminary Plat have been met. 
 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the preliminary plat for 5155 Weeks Road, 4940 St. Albans Bay 
Road, and 4950 St. Albans Bay Road since, apart from the existing nonconforming lot standards, the proposal conforms 
with the design standards of Section 600.20 and the lot requirements of Sections 1120.10. The application proposes to 
redraw existing property lines and no new lots are proposed. One lakeshore flag lot and one side yard setback 
nonconformity will be eliminated as a part of this proposal. Additionally, no new nonconformities will be created or 
expanded as a result of the lot line reconfiguration. 

Key Dates: 
Application complete:    November 15, 2018 
Notice of Public Hearing published:  November 29, 2018 
Planning Commission Public Hearing:  December 12, 2018 
City Council Decision:    January 2, 2019 
120– Day Deadline:    March 15, 2019 
 
  

  



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

      Current Lot Configuration at 5155 Weeks Road, 4940 St. Albans Bay Road, and 4950 St. Albans Bay Road 

 











 

Greenwood Resolution 04-19   |   Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO 04-19 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA  
ACTING AS THE BOARD OF APPEALS & ADJUSTMENTS 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
APPROVING  

IN RE: The application of Lesley J. Adam for approval of a Preliminary Plat pursuant to Greenwood  
ordinance code chapter 6 to reconfigure the property lines of the properties commonly known as 4940 St. Albans 

Bay Road, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-41-0048), 4950 St. Albans Bay Road, Greenwood, 
Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-41-0049), and 5155 Weeks Road, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331  

(PID No. 26-117-23-41-0009). 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, Applicant Lesley J. Adam (hereinafter ‘Applicant’) represents John and Bridgette Dunn, Daniel Wetterlin and 
Mona Jean Inman, and the Matthew D Frauenshuh Trust,  the respective owners of real property commonly known as 
4940 St. Albans Bay Road, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-41-0048), 4950 St. Albans Bay Road, 
Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-41-0049), and 5155 Weeks Road, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID 
No. 26-117-23-41-0009), respectively. 
 
WHEREAS, Applicant has submitted an application for a Preliminary Plat for the above-named properties; and 
 
WHEREAS, the real property at 4940 St. Albans Bay Road is legally described as follows: 
 
LOT 1, SHUMAN WOODS, HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA. (hereinafter “Lot 1”) 
 
; and 
 
WHEREAS, the real property at 4950 St. Albans Bay Road is legally described as follows: 
 
LOT 2, SHUMAN WOODS, HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA. (hereinafter “Lot 2”) 
 
; and 
 
WHEREAS, the real property at 5155 Weeks Road is legally described as follows: 
 
THE WEST 100 FEET OF LOTS 91 AND 93, AUDITOR’S SUBDIVISION NO. 141, HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA. 
(hereinafter “Lot 3”) 
  
; and 
 
WHEREAS, Applicant has legal authority to act on behalf of the above-named owners and make the application for a 
preliminary plat to reconfigure the property lines of Lot 1, Lot 2 and Lot 3; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing was published, and a public hearing was held before the city council to consider the 
application; and 
 
WHEREAS, public comment was taken at the public hearing before the planning commission on December 12, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city council of the city of Greenwood has received the staff report, and considered the application, the 
comments of the applicant and the comments of the public. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota does hereby make the following: 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. The foregoing Recitals are adopted as if set out here at in full. 



 

Greenwood Resolution 04-19   |   Page 2 of 2 
 

 
2. That Lot 1, the real property commonly known as 4940 St. Albans Bay Road, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 

26-117-23-41-0048), and Lot 2,  the real property commonly known as 4950 St. Albans Bay Road, Greenwood, 
Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-41-0049), and Lot 3, the real property commonly known as 5155 Weeks Road, 
Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-41-0009), are lots of record located within the Greenwood  R-1 
district. 

 
3. In conformance with the requirements of Greenwood ordinance code chapter 6, the Applicant has submitted an 

application for Preliminary Plat in order to reconfigure the properties.  
 
4. The survey submitted by the Applicant, (attached hereto as Exhibit A), illustrates the locations and dimensions of the 

proposed reconfigured property boundaries. Said survey also illustrates the existing improvements, setbacks, and 
hardcover for the property. 

 
5. At its public hearing, the Planning Commission discussed the request and, on a 3-0 vote, and found that the request 

complies with the criteria in Greenwood ordinance code and recommended approval of the Preliminary Plat request 
upon the following findings, to-wit: 

 
(a) The properties meet the minimum lot size and setback requirements for the zoning district as outlined in 

Section 1120.05; 
(b) The proposed subdivision would not create or intensify any nonconformities; 
(c) The proposed subdivision would eliminate the lake yard flag lot nonconformity for Lot 1; 
(d) The proposed subdivision would eliminate the west side yard setback nonconformity for Lot 3. 
(e) The proposed subdivision will not negatively impact the public health, safety and general welfare. 
 

6. The city council agrees with and adopts the above findings of the Planning Commission. 
 
 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

Based upon the foregoing findings of fact, the city council makes the following conclusions of law: 
 
The Applicant has made an adequate demonstration of facts for a subdivision meeting the standards of section 600.10 
necessary for granting approval of a Preliminary Plat. Now therefore: 
 
1. The Preliminary Plat application to reconfigure the property lines of Lot 1, Lot 2, and Lot 3, being the properties 

commonly known as 4940 St. Albans Bay Road, 4950 St. Albans Bay Road, and 5155 Weeks Road, Greenwood, 
Minnesota should be approved. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota: 
 
That the application of Lesley J. Adam for:  
 
1. Preliminary Plat to reconfigure the property lines of Lot 1, Lot 2, and Lot 3 pursuant to Greenwood ordinance code 

section 600.10 as shown in the survey Exhibit A attached hereto, is APPROVED. 
 
PASSED this 2nd day of January, 2019 by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota. 
 
 
___ AYES   ___ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Dana Young, City Clerk 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 7C 

Agenda Date: 01-02-19 

Prepared by Dale Cooney 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consider Res 05-19, Findings for Conditional Use Permit Request and Res 06-19, Findings for Variance 
Request, Roland and Ranee Jacobus for 5290 Meadville Street. 

Summary: Copies of the application materials and staff report are attached reference. Notice of the public hearing was 
published in the Sun-Sailor newspaper on 11-29-18. The planning commission held a public hearing at their 12-12-18, 
meeting. The planning commission considered public comment, applicant’s comments, application materials, and staff 
reports when making their recommendation (see planning commission action below). The city council must incorporate 
city code section 1155.20 variance criteria, and 1150.20 conditional use permit criteria as well as any conditions in the 
motion.  

Planning Commission Action: Motion by Steingas to recommend approval of the CUP and variance requests based on 
the recommendation and findings of staff. Motion was seconded by Nelson. Motion carried 3-0. 

Note: At the planning commission meeting there was a discussion regarding the garage that is located in the city ROW. 
Staff consulted with attorney Bob Vose. Here is his opinion regarding the garage ... 
 

This is not the same as a legal nonconformity (grandfathering). Grandfathering allows a use or structure remain even 
though it is in violation of an applicable zoning restriction where the use or structure was initiated or constructed 
before the zoning restriction was enacted. But the use or structure must be lawful when it was initiated or 
constructed.  
  

Assuming the public right of way pre-dates the garages, it was not legal to construct garages in the ROW when the 
construction occurred. It doesn’t matter whether the City’s ordinances say that explicitly because there is a state 
statute prohibiting construction of improvements in ROW. So the garage was unlawful when built. Moreover, the 
restriction at issue is NOT a zoning restriction. Rather it’s the City’s property interest in the ROW. A ROW easement 
(whether platted or created by easement instrument) is an easement in favor of the public. Grandfathering does not 
allow one party (the garage owner) to encroach on another party’s (the City/public’s) property interests.      
  

So for both reasons, there is no grandfathering argument. That said, the City could allow reconstruction of the 
garages in the ROW by partially vacating or by entering some type of agreement permitting the encroachment. Or the 
City could require that the garages be moved. 

	

The city council is not being asked to take action regarding the garage at this time. 
 
Key Dates: 
Application complete:    November 15, 2018 
Notice of Public Hearing published:  November 29, 2018 
Planning Commission Public Hearing:  December 12, 2018 
City Council Consideration:   January 2, 2019 
60-Day Deadline:    January 14, 2019 
120-Day Deadline:    March 15, 2019 

Council Action: The city council must take action by 01-14-19 unless the council decides to exercise the city’s option to 
take another 60 days to consider the request. Possible motions … 
 

1. I move the city council adopts resolution 05-19 laying out the findings of fact APPROVING the conditional use permit 
request of Roland and Ranee Jacobus for 5290 Meadville Street, as proposed. I further move that the city council 
adopts resolution 06-19 laying out the findings of fact APPROVING the setback variance requests of Roland and 
Ranee Jacobus for 5290 Meadville Street, as proposed. I further move the council directs the city clerk to mail a copy of 
the findings to the applicant and the DNR, and place an Affidavit of Mailing for each of the mailings in the property file.  

 

2. I move the city council directs staff to draft FINDINGS FOR DENIAL of the conditional use permit and variance 
requests of Roland and Ranee Jacobus, 5290 Meadville Street, to be considered at the February 6, 2019 city council 
meeting. I further move the city council directs city staff to exercise the city’s option to take 60 additional days to 
process the conditional use permit application by mailing written notice and placing an Affidavit of Mailing in the 
property file. 
 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

3. I move the city council directs city staff to exercise the city’s option to take 60 additional days to process the variance 
application of Roland and Ranee Jacobus, 5290 Meadville Street, by mailing written notice and placing an Affidavit of 
Mailing in the property file. The written notice shall state the reason for the extension is: __________.  

 
Note: MN statue 15.99 requires a council decision within 60 days. The council may approve or modify a request based on verbal findings of fact and the 
applicant may proceed with their project. However, if the council denies the request, the council must state in writing the reasons for denial at the time 
that it denies the request. The council may extend the 60-day time limit by providing written notice to the applicant including the reason for the extension 
and its anticipated length (may not exceed 60 additional days unless approved by the applicant in writing). 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

Agenda Number: 7C 

Agenda Date: 01-02-19 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
Agenda Item: Consider variance and conditional use permit request of Roland and Ranee Jacobus to 
encroach into the north and side yard setbacks, exceed the maximum permitted tree removal, and regrade 
portions of the property in conjunction with the construction of a new house at 5290 Meadville Street. 
 
Summary:  Roland and Ranee Jacobus are attempting to purchase 5290 Meadville Street and would like to build a new 
house on the property. They are seeking city approval for their proposal prior to finalizing the sale of the property. The 
existing property is nonconforming in several ways, and the proposal attempts to reduce or eliminate many of those 
nonconformities. The 6,080 square foot property is 40-feet wide. 
 
Setbacks: 
Section 1120.15 of the Greenwood Zoning Code requires a side yard setbacks of 8 feet for the 40 foot wide lot. Applicants 
are proposing side yard setbacks of 3.8 feet on the south side and 3.9 feet on the north side. The existing house has a 
south side yard setback of 2.9 feet and a north side yard setback of 2 feet. 
 
The proposed house is 30 feet wide for the main portion of the house, with a 2 foot bumpout on the north side. Most of the 
house on the north side would have a setback of 5.8 feet or more. The south side yard faces a commercial property. In 
both cases the setbacks are improved from existing conditions. Meeting the city setback requirements would limit the 
house width to 24 feet wide, which would not meet the minimum house width requirements. So, some type of variance is 
required to build a zoning code compliant house on the property. 
 
The overall footprint of the house is comparable to existing conditions. The property owners’ intent is that the new house 
would have a footprint similar to that of the existing house plus the gazeebo. An existing deck that encroaches into the 
commercial property to the south is proposed to be removed. The nonconforming lake yard gazeebo and deck will also be 
removed. 
 
The updated survey shows a rear yard setback of 49.8 feet. Staff would recommend that this be revised to meet the 
required 50 feet or that a variance be approved for the .2 foot encroachment. 
 
Grading: 
The proposed grading changes exceed the City’s Conditional Use Permit threshold. Section 1140.19 (2) of the City 
Zoning Code requires a conditional use permit for any the grading or site/lot topography alteration request that increases 
or decreases the average grade (existing compared to final conditions) by more than 1 foot in any 300 square foot area. 
The applicant is proposing to impact 648 square feet of surface area and 100 cubic yards of volume. 
 
The two main areas of grade alteration included eliminating a lower level walkout entry, and regrading the lake yard. The 
lower level walkout entry will be filled in as a part of the grading proposal. 
 
The lake yard grading would even out the grade in the area that is now a gazeebo and patio. The remaining lake yard 
would be evened out with two tiers of retaining walls. A portion of this lake yard sits below the gazeebo and supported 
through old, potentially unstable retaining walls. 
 
The grading proposal is at least partially necessitated by the removal of significant lakeyard nonconformities. In staff’s 
opinion, the proposal meets the standards required for approval of the conditional use permit. 
 
Trees:  This winter, the applicant will be removing buckthorn and two trees within the lake yard of the property. One tree 
is significant and one tree is not significant. 
 
Additionally, tree removal anticipated by construction would exceed the city’s threshold of removing 20% of the total 
diameter inches for the property. The applicant would need to apply for a variance from the city’s tree removal 
requirements at a future date before the remaining trees could be removed. 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

Garage: 
The existing detached garage encroaches into the public right-of-way. To construct a new house on the property, the 
garage would need to come down and be replaced. The garage is in poor condition anyways. 
 
The portion of the garage that encroaches into the public right-of-way is not protected as a legal nonconformity. However, 
there are at least two other garages in this area that also encroach into the right-of-way. The city could allow 
reconstruction of the garage in the ROW by partially vacating or by entering some type of agreement permitting the 
encroachment.  Or the City could require that the garage be moved. 
 
The city should address the issue of possibly vacating a portion of the street or requiring an encroachment agreement for 
the rebuilt garage. Any relocation or expansion of the garage would likely require a variance, and the suitability and 
placement of the garage would be addressed at that time. 
 
Impervious Surface Area: 
A significant reduction in impervious surfaces is proposed for the property. The zoning code limits the impervious area for 
a property of this size to 33.9%. The property is currently at 49.4% impervious, which excludes areas that encroach into 
the public right-of-way and the neighboring commercial property. As proposed, the impervious areas would be reduced to 
32.4%, which is zoning code compliant. (Note that retaining walls should not be included in the impervious surface 
calculation.) The impervious areas that are directed towards the street will be reduced from existing conditions. 
 
Building Volume: 
The proposed house would have an above grade building volume of 20,346 cubic feet. Maximum allowable building 
volume for the property is 36,480 cubic feet. 
 
Discussion: The city council has spent the last couple of years revising its residential ordinance in an attempt to help 
accommodate small lots to more easily meet city zoning standards. Part of the intent of the ordinance was to eliminate 
uncertainty for property owners as to what might be able to be accomplished on smaller city lots. However, the intent was 
not to eliminate the potential for variances. 
 
In the opinion of staff, the proposed house and grading eliminate a number of accumulated nonconformities on the 
property while also proposing a relatively modest house on a small, narrow lake property. The proposal does not meet 
every aspect of the revised residential zoning code, but clearly meets the practical difficulty standards and greatly 
improves upon existing conditions in nearly every aspect. For these reasons, staff is supportive of the variance and CUP 
requests. 
 
Staff Recommendation for Variance Request: 
Staff recommends approval of the variance request of Roland and Ranee Jacobus for a variance to encroach into the 
south side yard setback by 4.2 feet, and into the north side yard setback by 4.1 feet in order to build a new house at 5290 
Meadville Street, as proposed. The recommendation is subject to the condition that the rear yard setback be adjusted .2 
feet to meet the 50 foot lake yard setback requirement. 
 

a) The variance, if granted, will be in harmony and keeping with the spirit and intent of the zoning ordinance because 
the purpose of the ordinance is to provide a use zone for low-density single-family dwellings that will be exclusive 
of other types of use for the purpose of creating a quality semi-estate district. The proposed expansion is 
consistent with that purpose and is a modest house on a challenging, undersized property. 

b) The variance, if granted, will be consistent with the comprehensive plan which encourages, safe, healthy, and 
quality housing that respects the natural environment of the community. 

c) Though the property owner's proposed manner of use of the property is not permitted by the zoning ordinance 
without a variance, the proposed manner of use is reasonable because: it maintains the single family nature of the 
property while improving upon the existing nonconforming conditions. The narrow lot creates challenges to 
meeting the setback standards and the building width standards. 

d) The plight of the landowner-applicant is due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the 
landowner because: the buildable area on the property is limited due to the 40 foot lot width and the overall size of 
the lot. 

e) The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality, because: the proposed house is a 
modest change from existing conditions and would remain consistent with the scope and scale of the surrounding 
properties. 

f) The variance, if granted, will not: 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

i. Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property; 
ii. Unreasonably increase the congestion in the public street; 
iii. Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety; or 
iv. Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the neighborhood or in any way be 

contrary to the intent of this ordinance. 
 

Staff Recommendation for Conditional Use Permit Request: 
Staff recommends approval of the conditional use permit request of Roland and Ranee Jacobus for 5290 Meadville Street 
to impact 648 square feet of surface area and 100 cubic yards of volume in order to regrade the lake yard portion of the 
property, as proposed. Staff findings based on the CUP review criteria found in city code section 1155.20: 
  

a) The proposed use will comply with the regulations specified for the R-1 zoning district. 
b) The use is one of the conditional uses permitted for the R-1 zoning district. 
c) The use will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, comfort, convenience or general welfare 

of the neighborhood or city. 
d) The proposed use will be harmonious with the objective(s) of the comp plan, particularly the objective of: 

Maintaining the overall pattern of drainage from the property and not increasing stormwater runoff. 
e) The use will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future neighboring uses. 
f) The use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services, including streets, police and fire 

protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, sewer, schools, or will be served adequately by such facilities 
and services provided by the persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use. 

g) The use will not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and services and will 
not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 

h) The use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of operation that will be 
detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, 
smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 

a. The use will have vehicular approaches to the property that do not create traffic congestion or interfere 
with traffic on surrounding public thoroughfares. 

b. The use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural, scenic or historic feature of major 
importance. 

c. The use will not depreciate surrounding property values. 
 

And subject to the following conditions: 
A. Applicants will comply with the recommendations of the city engineer. 
B. The applicant shall apply for a variance from the city’s tree removal requirements at a future date before trees in 

excess of 20% of the diameter inches could be removed from the property. 
 





























S2

Minnetonka, Minnesota  55345

Phone (952) 474-7964

17917 Highway No. 7

Web: www.advsur.com

CLIENT/JOB ADDRESS
SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.

SHEET 2 OF 2

DRAWING ORIENTATION & SCALE

DRAWING NUMBER

SHEET SIZE: 22 X 34

#

LICENSE NO.

DATE

NOVEMBER 14, 2018 

DATE DRAFTED:
NOVEMBER 14, 2018 

# 52716

Joshua S. Rinke

NOV. 5, 2018 
DATE SURVEYED:

SURVEYED BY

ADVANCED SURVEYING. & ENG., CO.

20'10'0



S1

Minnetonka, Minnesota  55345

Phone (952) 474-7964

17917 Highway No. 7

Web: www.advsur.com

CLIENT/JOB ADDRESS
SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.

SHEET 1 OF 2

DRAWING ORIENTATION & SCALE

DRAWING NUMBER

SHEET SIZE: 22 X 34

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
That part of  Lot 3, Solberg's Point, lying South of  the North 60 feet thereof, Hennepin County,
Minnesota.

SCOPE OF WORK & LIMITATIONS:
1. Showing the length and direction of  boundary lines of  the legal description listed above.  The

scope of  our services does not include determining what you own, which is a legal matter.
Please check the legal description with your records or consult with competent legal counsel, if
necessary, to make sure that it is correct and that any matters of  record, such as easements, that
you wish to be included on the survey have been shown.

2. Showing the location of observed existing improvements we deem necessary for the survey.
3. Setting survey markers or verifying existing survey markers to establish the corners of  the

property.
4. Showing and tabulating impervious surface coverage of  the lot for your review and for the

review of  such governmental agencies that may have jurisdiction over these requirements to
verify they are correctly shown before proceeding with construction.

5. Showing elevations on the site at selected locations to give some indication of  the topography
of  the site. We have also provided a benchmark for your use in determining elevations for
construction on this site. The elevations shown relate only to the benchmark provided on this
survey. Use that benchmark and check at least one other feature shown on the survey when
determining other elevations for use on this site or before beginning construction.

6. This survey has been completed without the benefit of  a current title commitment.  There may
be existing easements or other encumbrances that would be revealed by a current title
commitment.  Therefore, this survey does not purport to show any easements or encumbrances
other than the ones shown hereon.

7. While we show a proposed location for this home or addition, we are not as familiar with your
proposed plans as you, your architect, or the builder are.  Review our proposed location of  the
improvements and proposed yard grades carefully to verify that they match your plans before
construction begins.  Also, we are not as familiar with local codes and minimum requirements
as the local building and zoning officials in this community are.  Be sure to show this survey to
said officials, or any other officials that may have jurisdiction over the proposed improvements
and obtain their approvals before beginning construction or planning improvements to the
property.

8. Note that all building dimensions and building tie dimensions to the property lines, are taken
from the siding and or stucco of the building.

9. While we show the building setback lines per the City of  Greenwood web site, we suggest you
show this survey to the appropriate city officials to be sure that the setback lines are shown
correctly. Do this BEFORE you use this survey to design anything for this site.

STANDARD SYMBOLS & CONVENTIONS:
"●" Denotes iron survey marker, found, unless otherwise noted.

#

LICENSE NO.

DATE

NOVEMBER 14, 2018 

DATE DRAFTED:
NOVEMBER 14, 2018 

# 52716

Joshua S. Rinke

NOV. 5, 2018 
DATE SURVEYED:

SURVEYED BY

ADVANCED SURVEYING. & ENG., CO.

20'10'0

EXISTING HARDCOVER

HOUSE                      1,178 SQ. FT.
GARAGE                       339 SQ. FT.
FRONT STONE WALK             132 SQ. FT.
DECK                         358 SQ. FT.
SOUTHERLY WALK/STEPS         256 SQ. FT.
STONE STEPS (TO BASEMENT)     47 SQ. FT.
GAZEBO                        75 SQ. FT.
STONE PATIO                  185 SQ. FT.
WOOD STEPS/DOCK/WALLS        431 SQ. FT.

TOTAL EXISTING HARDCOVER   3,001 SQ. FT.

AREA OF LOT TO O.H.W. LINE 6,080 SQ. FT.

LOT COVERAGE            49.4%

GRADING & EROSION CONTROL NOTES:
BEFORE DEMOLITION AND GRADING BEGIN
 Install silt fence/bio roll around the perimeter of the construction area.

 Sediment control measures must remain in place until final stabilization has been
established and then shall be removed.  Sediment controls may be removed to
accommodate short term construction activity but must be replaced before the next
rain.

 A temporary rock construction entrance shall be established at each access point to
the site and a 6 inch layer of 1 to 2 inch rock extending at least 50 feet from the
street into the site and shall be underlain with permeable geotextile fabric.  The
entrance shall be maintained during construction by top dressing or washing to
prevent tracking or flow of sediments onto public streets, walks or alleys.  Potential
entrances that are not so protected shall be closed by fencing to prevent unprotected
exit from the site.

 Contractor shall install inlet protection on all existing storm sewer inlets in
accordance with the city standard details.  Inlet protection shall also be provided on
all proposed storm sewer inlets immediately following construction of the inlet.
Inlet protection must be installed in a manner that will not impound water for
extended periods of time or in a manner that presents a hazard to vehicular or
pedestrian traffic.

DURING CONSTRUCTION:
 When dirt stockpiles have been created, a double row of silt fence shall be placed to

prevent escape of sediment laden runoff and if the piles or other disturbed areas are
to remain in place for more than 14 days, they shall be seeded with Minnesota
Department of Transportation Seed Mixture 22-111 at 100 lb/acre followed by
covering with spray mulch.

 A dumpster shall be placed on the site for prompt disposal of construction debris.
These dumpsters shall be serviced regularly to prevent overflowing and blowing
onto adjacent properties.  Disposal of solid wastes from the site shall in accordance
with Minnesota Pollution Control Agency requirements.

 A separate container shall be placed for disposal of hazardous waste.  Hazardous
wastes shall be disposed of in accordance with MPCA requirements.

 Concrete truck washout shall be in the plastic lined ditch and dispose of washings as
solid waste.

 Sediment control devices shall be regularly inspected and after major rainfall events
and shall be cleaned and repaired as necessary to provide downstream protection.

 Streets and other public ways shall be inspected daily and if litter or soils has been
deposited it shall promptly be removed.

 If necessary, vehicles, that have mud on their wheels, shall be cleaned before exiting
the site in the rock entrance areas

 Moisture shall be applied to disturbed areas to control dust as needed.

 Portable toilet facilities shall be placed on site for use by workers and shall be
properly maintained.

 If it becomes necessary to pump the excavation during construction, pump discharge
shall be into the stockpile areas so that the double silt fence around these areas can
filter the water before it leaves the site.

 Temporary erosion control shall be installed no later than 14 days after the site is
first disturbed and shall consist of broadcast seeding with Minnesota Department of
Transportation Seed Mixture 22-111 at 100 lb/acre followed by covering with spray
mulch.

 Erosion control measures shown on the erosion control plan are the absolute
minimum. The contractor shall install temporary earth dikes, sediment traps or
basins and additional silt fencing as deemed necessary to control erosion.

SITE WORK COMPLETION:
 When final grading has been completed but before placement of seed or sod an “as
built” survey shall be done per  City of Greenwood requirements to insure that
grading was properly done.

 When any remedial grading has been completed, sod or seeding shall be completed
including any erosion control blankets for steep areas.

 When turf is established, silt fence and inlet protection and other erosion control
devices shall be disposed of and adjacent streets, alleys and walks shall be cleaned
as needed to deliver a site that is erosion resistant and clean.

 Contractor shall maintain positive drainage of a minimum 2% slope away from
proposed building.

PROPOSED HARDCOVER

HOUSE                      1,286 SQ. FT.
EXISTING GARAGE              339 SQ. FT.
FRONT WALK                   134 SQ. FT.
STOOP/STEPS                   33 SQ. FT.
FRONT PORCH                   38 SQ. FT.
LAKE SIDE STEPS/WALLS        144 SQ. FT.

TOTAL PROPOSED HARDCOVER   1,974 SQ. FT.

AREA OF LOT TO O.H.W. LINE 6,080 SQ. FT.

LOT COVERAGE            32.4%



04-Dec-2018Rainbow Tree Company Address

5290 Meadville St

Greenwood MN  55331

E3117

Map Location

Ranee Jacobus

11571 K-Tel Drive
Minnetonka, MN 55343

952-922-3810
Email:  raneejacobus@gmail.com

Lot Size (acres)

Tree# PropertyQty DBH Dt Chg

Consultation1 0

Eastern Red Cedar1 1 11 12/4/2018

Boxelder 2 1 20 12/4/2018

Green Ash3 1 10 12/4/2018

Green Ash4 1 16 12/4/2018

American Elm5 1 10 12/4/2018

American Elm6 1 8 12/4/2018

American Elm7 1 9 12/4/2018

Black Willow8 1 16 12/4/2018

American Elm9 1 9 12/4/2018

White Poplar10 1 22 12/4/2018

Eastern Red Cedar11 1 10 12/4/2018

Silver Maple Clump12 1 0 12/4/2018

Colorado Blue Spruce13 1 6 12/4/2018

White Spruce14 1 6 12/4/2018

White Spruce15 1 7 12/4/2018

White Spruce16 1 6 12/4/2018

White Spruce17 1 6 12/4/2018

White Spruce18 1 6 12/4/2018



Greenwood Resolution 05-19   |   Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO 05-19 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA  
ACTING AS THE BOARD OF APPEALS & ADJUSTMENTS 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

APPROVING 
In Re: Application of Roland and Ranee Jacobus for the property at 5290 Meadville Street  for a conditional use 

permit under Greenwood ordinance code section 1140.19(3) and 1150.20 to permit grading or site / lot 
topography alterations that increase or decrease the average grade (existing compared to final conditions) by 

more than 1 foot in a 350 square foot area. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
WHEREAS, Applicants Roland and Ranee Jacobus (hereinafter ‘Applicant’) is the owner of property commonly known as 
5290 Meadville Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-33-0008) being real property located in 
Hennepin County, Minnesota and legally described as follows: 
 
THAT PART OF LOT 3, SOLBERG'S POINT, LYING SOUTH OF THE NORTH 60 FEET THEREOF,  
HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA. 
 
; and 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant proposes to regrade the property in conjunction with the construction of a new house and the 
removal of lake yard nonconformities on the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing was published, notice given to neighboring property owners, and a public hearing 
was held before the planning commission to consider the application; and 
 
WHEREAS, public comment was taken at the public hearing before the planning commission on December 12, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city council of the city of Greenwood has received the staff report, the recommendation of the planning 
commission, and considered the application, the comments of the applicant, and the comments of the public. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments 
does hereby make the following: 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. That the real property located at 5290 Meadville Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-33-0008) 
is a single-family lot of record located within the R-1 district. 
 

2. The applicant is proposing to alter site/lot topography that increases or decreases the average grade (existing 
compared to final conditions) by more than 1 foot in a 350 square foot area in conjunction with the construction of a 
new house and the removal of lake yard nonconformities on the property. Pursuant to Greenwood ordinance code 
1140.19(3), the increase or decrease the average grade (existing compared to final conditions) by more than 1 foot in 
any 300 square foot area requires a conditional use permit.  
 

3. Pursuant to Greenwood ordinance code section 1150.20, Subd. 3, Conditional Use Permits (general regulations), the 
city council may impose such conditions and safeguards upon the property benefitted by a CUP as may be necessary 
to maintain compatibility with other properties in the neighborhood.   
 

4. Greenwood ordinance section 1150.20, Subd 1 states: 
 
“Subd. 1. The planning commission shall make findings and recommendations to the city council. The council may 
then authorize a conditional use by resolution provided the evidence presented is such as to establish: 

 
(a) That the proposed use will comply with the regulations specified in this ordinance for the district in which the 

proposed use is to be located. 
(b) That the use is one of the conditional uses permitted for the district in which it is to be located. 



Greenwood Resolution 05-19   |   Page 2 of 2 
 

(c) The use will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, comfort, convenience or general welfare 
of the neighborhood or city. 

(d) The use will be harmonious with the objectives of the comp plan. 
(e) The use will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future neighboring uses. 
(f) The use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services, including streets, police and fire 

protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, sewer, schools, or will be served adequately by such facilities 
and services provided by the persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use. 

(g) The use will not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and services and will 
not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 

(h) The use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of operation that will be 
detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, 
smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 

(i) The use will have vehicular approaches to the property that do not create traffic congestion or interfere with traffic 
on surrounding public thoroughfares. 

(j) The use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural, scenic or historic feature of major 
importance. 

(k) The use will not depreciate surrounding property values.” 
 
6. The applicant asserts that the proposed CUP request complies with CUP standards in Greenwood ordinance section 

1150.20, Subd 1. 
 

7. The planning commission held a public hearing and discussed the CUP request and on a 3-0 vote recommended 
approval because the proposed CUP request complies with the CUP standards in Greenwood ordinance section 
1150.20, Subd 1. The approval recommendation is not subject to any conditions.  
 

8. Based on the foregoing, the city council determined that the proposed CUP request complies with the CUP standards 
in Greenwood ordinance section 1150.20 subd 1, subject to the conditions noted in the above findings of fact. 
 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 
Based upon the foregoing findings of fact, the city council acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments makes the 
following conclusions of law: 
 
1. The applicant has made an adequate demonstration of facts meeting the standards of sections 1140.19(3), and 

1150.20 necessary for the granting of a CUP.  
 

2. The granting of the CUP is not subject to any conditions.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 
Appeals & Adjustments that the city of Greenwood does hereby grant and issue a Conditional Use Permit to alter site/lot 
topography that increases or decreases the average grade (existing compared to final conditions) by more than 1 foot in a 
350 square foot area for the property at 5290 Meadville Street . The granting of the CUP is not subject to any conditions. 
 
PASSED this 2nd day of January, 2019 by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 
Appeals & Adjustments for the city of Greenwood, Minnesota. 
 
____ AYES ____ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Dana Young, City Clerk 
 



 

Greenwood Resolution 06-19   |   Page 1 of 3 
 

RESOLUTION NO 06-19 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA  
ACTING AS THE BOARD OF APPEALS & ADJUSTMENTS 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
In Re: Application of Roland and Ranee Jacobus for the property at 5290 Meadville Street for a variance from 

Greenwood ordinance code sections 1120.15 in order to encroach into the north and south side yard setbacks in 
conjunction with the construction of a new house on the property. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
WHEREAS, Applicants Roland and Ranee Jacobus (hereinafter ‘Applicant’) is the owner of property commonly known as 
5290 Meadville Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-33-0008) being real property located in 
Hennepin County, Minnesota and legally described as follows: 
 
THAT PART OF LOT 3, SOLBERG'S POINT, LYING SOUTH OF THE NORTH 60 FEET THEREOF,  
HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA. 
 
; and 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant proposes to encroach into the north and south side yard setbacks in order to construct new 
house on the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing was published, notice given to neighboring property owners, and a public hearing 
was held before the planning commission to consider the application; and 
 
WHEREAS, public comment was taken at the public hearing before the planning commission on December 12, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city council of the city of Greenwood has received the staff report, the recommendation of the planning 
commission, and considered the application, the comments of the applicant, and the comments of the public. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments 
does hereby make the following: 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. That the real property located at 5290 Meadville Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-33-0008)  
is a single-family lot of record located within the R-1 district. 
 

2. The applicants propose to build a new house that would encroach into the north and south side yard setbacks on the 
property. Section 1120.15 of the city code requires side yard setbacks of 8 feet for the 40 foot wide lot. Applicants are 
proposing side yard setbacks of 3.8 feet on the south side and 3.9 feet on the north side. The existing house has a 
south side yard setback of 2.9 feet and a north side yard setback of 2 feet. Meeting the city setback requirements 
would limit the house width to 24 feet wide, which would not meet the minimum house width requirements. 
 

3. Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5 & 6 states: 

“Subd. 4. Practical Difficulties Standard. “Practical difficulties,” as used in connection with the granting of a variance, 
means: 
 

(a) that the property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by the zoning 
ordinance; 

(b) the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the landowner; 
(c) and the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality 
 
Economic considerations alone shall not constitute practical difficulties.  
 
Subd. 5. Findings. The board, in considering all requests for a variance, shall adopt findings addressing the following 
questions: 
 



 

Greenwood Resolution 06-19   |   Page 2 of 3 
 

(a) Is the variance in harmony with the purposes and intent of the ordinance? 
(b) Is the variance consistent with the comprehensive plan? 
(c) Does the proposal put property to use in a reasonable manner? 
(d) Are there unique circumstances to the property not created by the landowner? 
(e) Will the variance, if granted, alter the essential character of the locality? 
 
Subd. 6. Practical Difficulties Considerations. When determining reasonable manner or essential character, the board 
will consider, but will not be limited to, the following: 
 

(a) Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property.  
(b) Unreasonably increase the congestion in the public street.  
(c) Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety.  
(d) Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the neighborhood or in any way be contrary to 

the intent of this ordinance.” 
 

4. The applicants assert that the proposed variance request complies with the practical difficulties standards in 
Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5, & 6. 
 

5. The planning commission, on a 3-0 vote, recommended the council approve the request of Roland and Ranee 
Jacobus to vary from city code section 1120.15 to encroach into the south side yard setback by 4.2 feet, and into the 
north side yard setback by 4.1 feet in order to build a new house at 5290 Meadville Street, as proposed. The motion 
was based on the following findings: 
 
a) The variance, if granted, will be in harmony and keeping with the spirit and intent of the zoning ordinance because 

the purpose of the ordinance is to provide a use zone for low-density single-family dwellings that will be exclusive 
of other types of use for the purpose of creating a quality semi-estate district. The proposed expansion is 
consistent with that purpose and is a modest house on a challenging, undersized property. 

b) The variance, if granted, will be consistent with the comprehensive plan which encourages, safe, healthy, and 
quality housing that respects the natural environment of the community. 

c) Though the property owner's proposed manner of use of the property is not permitted by the zoning ordinance 
without a variance, the proposed manner of use is reasonable because: it maintains the single family nature of the 
property while improving upon the existing nonconforming conditions. The narrow lot creates challenges to 
meeting the setback standards and the building width standards. 

d) The plight of the landowner-applicant is due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the 
landowner because: the buildable area on the property is limited due to the 40 foot lot width and the overall size of 
the lot. 

e) The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality, because: the proposed house is a 
modest change from existing conditions and would remain consistent with the scope and scale of the surrounding 
properties. 

f) The variance, if granted, will not: 
i. Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property; 
ii. Unreasonably increase the congestion in the public street; 
iii. Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety; or 
iv. Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the neighborhood or in any way be 

contrary to the intent of this ordinance. 
 

6. Based on the foregoing, the city council determined that the variance request complies with the practical difficulties 
standards in Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5, & 6. 
 

 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

Based upon the foregoing findings of fact, the city council acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments makes the 
following conclusions of law: 
 
The applicant has made an adequate demonstration of facts meeting the standards of section 1155.10 necessary for the 
granting of variances from section 1120.15 and therefore variances to encroach into south side yard setback by 4.2 feet, 
and into the north side yard setback by 4.1 feet in order to build a new house at 5290 Meadville Street be APPROVED. 
 
The approval is conditioned that: a) the proposed lake yard setback be adjusted to meet the 50 foot minimum lake yard 



 

Greenwood Resolution 06-19   |   Page 3 of 3 
 

setback requirement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 
Appeals & Adjustments: 
 
That the application of Roland and Ranee Jacobus for the property at 5290 Meadville Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 
55331 for variances from section 1120.15 to encroach into south side yard setback by 4.2 feet, and into the north side 
yard setback by 4.1 feet in order to build a new house at 5290 Meadville Street is APPROVED. 
 
The approval is conditioned that: a) the proposed lake yard setback be adjusted to meet the 50 foot minimum lake yard 
setback requirement. 
 
PASSED this 2nd day of January, 2019 by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 
Appeals & Adjustments for the city of Greenwood, Minnesota. 
 
 
___ AYES   ___ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Dana Young, City Clerk 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 7D 

Agenda Date: 01-02-19 

Prepared by Dale Cooney 
 
 

Agenda Item:  CUP Request, Todd and Amy Wilkinson, 21800 Byron Circle. 

Summary:	Todd and Amy Wilkinson, property owners at 21800 Byron Circle are requesting a conditional use permit in 
order to regrade areas of the lake yard of their property. The house was built in 1910, according to Hennepin County 
records, and there are a number of nonconformities within the lake yard. The house sits atop a significant bluff and much 
of the proposed regrading would take place within the bluff.  

Planning Commission Action: The planning commission held a public hearing at their December 12 meeting and on a 
3-0 vote recommended that the city take an additional 60 days to review the request based on the fact that the plans did 
not clearly identify the extent of the work. Since much of the work would be permitted based on existing nonconformities, 
the planning commission said that the plans needed to more clearly identify those improvements that are existing versus 
those that are proposed. 

Key Dates: 
Application complete:    November 30, 2018 
Notice of Public Hearing published:  November 29, 2018 
Planning Commission Public Hearing:  December 12, 2018 
City Council Consideration:   February 6, 2019 
60-Day Deadline:    January 29, 2019 
120-Day Deadline:    March 30, 2019 

Council Action: None required. The planning commission will consider the request at their January 9th meeting. 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

 Agenda Number: 4A 

Agenda Date: 01-02-19 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

 
Agenda Item: Consider the conditional use permit request of Todd and Amy Wilkinson for 21800 Byron Circle to 
regrade the lake yard area of the property. 
 
Summary:		Todd and Amy Wilkinson, property owners at 21800 Byron Circle are requesting a conditional use permit in 
order to regrade areas of the lake yard of their property. The house was built in 1910, according to Hennepin County 
records, and there are a number of nonconformities within the lake yard. The house sits atop a significant bluff and much 
of the proposed regrading would take place within the bluff.  
 
Grading Conditional Use Permit: 
The proposed grading changes exceed the City’s Conditional Use Permit threshold. Section 1140.19 (2) of the City 
Zoning Code requires a conditional use permit for any the grading or site/lot topography alteration request involving more 
than 200 square feet of surface area, or involving more than 7 cubic yards of material. The applicant is proposing to 
impact 6,800 square feet of surface area and 12,000 cubic yards of volume. 
 
Many of the proposed grade changes are proposed for the bluff area, but grading within the bluff areas is severely 
restricted. The applicants would be entitled to repair or replace existing alterations to the bluff, but they would be 
prohibited from regrading or adding new retaining walls. 
 
The one major exception to this restriction is stairways, lifts and landings. Section 1176.04, Subd. 8 states of the zoning 
code states that stairways and lifts shall meet the following design requirements: 1. Stairways and lifts shall not exceed 4 
feet in width; 2. Landings for stairways and lifts shall not exceed 32 square feet in area. Landings larger than 32 square 
feet shall require a conditional use permit; 3. Canopies or roofs shall not be allowed on stairways, lifts, or landings; 4. 
Stairways, lifts, and landings may be either constructed above the ground on posts or pilings, or placed into the ground, 
provided they are designed and built in a manner that ensures control of soil erosion. 5. Stairways, lifts, and landings shall 
be located in the most visually inconspicuous portions of lots, as viewed from the surface of the public waters assuming 
summer, leaf-on conditions, whenever practical. 
 
It is the opinion of staff that the code permits replacing the existing stairs with the proposed stairs in the new location. The 
areas of the stairs that are to be abandoned must be returned to a natural bluff state. 
 
Per the city engineer comments (see attached), if areas of the bluff not adjacent to the stairway are experiencing erosion, 
non-structural solutions to stabilize the slope should be employed (not retaining walls).  Potential non-structural solutions 
include, but are not limited to, plantings, erosion control blanket, and bonded fiber matrix. 
 
Bluff Setbacks: 
City code defines two bluff setbacks: a 30 foot structure setback, and a 20 foot bluff impact zone. The bluff impact zone is 
the most restrictive such that structures and accessory facilities, except stairways and landings, must not be placed within 
bluff impact zones.  
 
Nearly all of the existing improvements on the lake side of the house are within the bluff impact zone. Per state law, those 
encroachments are allowed to be repaired or replaced, but not expanded. Grading is permitted within the bluff impact 
zone, but additional precautions must be taken to prevent erosion of the bluff. Unless the city was compelled to grant a 
variance, the proposed moving of the retaining walls within the bluff impact zone would be prohibited. 
 
Other Items: 
Stormwater Mitigation: Section 1140.17 requires stormwater mitigation for increased impervious surface coverage of 200 
square feet or more over existing conditions that do not drain to the lake or a wetland area. The project proposes to 
expand impervious areas by 863 square feet, but all of that expansion would drain towards Lake Minnetonka. Therefore, 
no stormwater mitigation would be required. 
 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

 
Staff Recommendation for Conditional Use Permit Request: 
Staff recommends approval with conditions of the conditional use permit request of Todd and Amy Wilkinson for 21800 
Byron Circle to impact 6,800 square feet of surface area and 12,000 cubic yards of volume in conjunction with the 
construction of a new house, as proposed. Staff findings based on the CUP review criteria found in city code section 
1155.20: 
  

a) The proposed use will comply with the regulations specified for the R-1 zoning district. 
b) The use is one of the conditional uses permitted for the R-1 zoning district. 
c) The use will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, comfort, convenience or general welfare 

of the neighborhood or city. 
d) The proposed use will be harmonious with the objective(s) of the comp plan, particularly the objective of: 

Maintaining the overall pattern of drainage from the property and not increasing stormwater runoff. 
e) The use will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future neighboring uses. 
f) The use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services, including streets, police and fire 

protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, sewer, schools, or will be served adequately by such facilities 
and services provided by the persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use. 

g) The use will not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and services and will 
not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 

h) The use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of operation that will be 
detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, 
smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 

a. The use will have vehicular approaches to the property that do not create traffic congestion or interfere 
with traffic on surrounding public thoroughfares. 

b. The use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural, scenic or historic feature of major 
importance. 

c. The use will not depreciate surrounding property values. 
 

And subject to the following conditions: 
a) Grading within the bluff shall be limited to the extent of the stairway to the lake and infill of the unused portions of 

the old stairway. 
b) No new structures or facilities (including retaining walls) can be placed within the bluff or bluff impact zone, except 

stairways and landings. Existing structures and facilities can be repaired or replaced in their current location and 
configuration, but not expanded. The use of alternate materials (for example, replacing wood with stone) is 
acceptable in the repair or replacement of existing improvements. 

c) Stairways and landings must be designed to meet the requirements of City code (Section 1175.04, Subd. 8).  For 
stairways and landings placed into the ground, only enough retaining wall adjacent to the stairway is allowed to 
ensure control of erosion. 

d) Project will be subject to the rules and regulations of zoning code Section 1176.08. Shoreland Alterations. 
e) If areas of the bluff not adjacent to the stairway are experiencing erosion, non-structural solutions to stabilize the 

slope should be employed (not retaining walls).  Potential non-structural solutions include, but are not limited to, 
plantings, erosion control blanket, and bonded fiber matrix. 

f) Applicant may be required to obtain a Minnehaha Creek Watershed District permit for aspects of the project 
including, but not limited to, erosion control.  





















  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 7E 

Agenda Date: 01-02-18 

Prepared by Dale Cooney and Deb Kind 

 
 

Agenda Item: Discuss Potential Revisions to Tree Ordinance, Section 1140.80 
 
Summary: Staff would like clarity regarding two issues with the tree ordinance ... 
 

1. Subd 3 limits the removal of significant trees and noxious trees may be removed without limitation, but the 
subdivsion is silent on removal of non-significant trees. Staff has interpreted this to mean there is no limitation on 
removal of non-significant trees, but it would be helpful if the ordinance makes that clear. 

 

2. Non-significant trees are required to be included in the tree preservation plan for calculating construction-related 
tree removal. This allows property owners to “game the system” and remove more diameter-inches of trees than 
would be possible if only significant trees were included in the plan and calculation. Also, requiring the inclusion of 
non-significant trees in tree preservation plans is inconsistent with subd 3, which only limits the removal of 
significant trees. 

 

The only time the code requires that non-significant trees be considered is in construction-related removal. But, if non-
significant trees aren’t otherwise protected, it seems like they could easily be removed before or after construction.  
Why make property owners do that removal in multiple steps?  
 

If the council is interested in protecting more trees, staff's preference would be to redefine significant trees, rather than 
have two classes of trees. 
 

For the council's reference, the definition of a significant tree is a healthy tree, measuring a minimum of 10" in diameter 
(31" circumference) or greater for hardwood deciduous trees, 14" in diameter (44" circumference) or greater for softwood 
deciduous trees, or 12" in diameter (38" circumference) or greater for conifer / evergreen trees. The trunk diameter of 
significant trees shall be measured at 48" above grade or at the top of the remaining stump if already cut or harvested. 
 

For the council's consideration, attached is an ordinance with proposed revisions to resolve the issues. If the council 
decides to move forward with the ordinance, the timeline is below ... 

Timeline: 
01-02-19  City council discusses potential revisions to the ordinance. 
01-24-19  The public hearing notice is submitted to the Sun-Sailor for publication. 
01-31-19  The public hearing notice is published in the Sun-Sailor (10+ days prior to planning commission meeting). 
02-13-19  Planning commission holds public hearing and makes recommendation. 
03-06-19 City council considers 1st reading of the ordinance (may make revisions / may waive 2nd reading). 
03-07-19 If the 2nd reading is waived, the ordinance is submitted to the Sun-Sailor for publication. 
03-14-19   If the 2nd reading is waived, the ordinance is published in the Sun-Sailor (goes into effect on this date). 
04-03-19 City council considers 2nd reading of the ordinance (may make revisions). 
04-04-19 The ordinance is submitted to the Sun-Sailor for publication. 
04-11-19 The ordinance is published in the Sun-Sailor (goes into effect on this date). 
 
Council Action: None required. Potential motions … 
 

1. I move the city council (1) approves the draft of the tree ordinance as written / with revisions as discussed; and (2) 
directs that the ordinance be placed on the 02-13-19 planning commission agenda for a public hearing and 
recommendation. 
 

2. Do nothing (maintain current ordinance) or other motion ??? 
 
Greenwood code section 1215 requires 2 readings of all ordinances prior to adoption. The 2nd reading shall be within 3 months of the 1st reading.  
There may be changes between the 1st and 2nd readings. The 2nd reading may be waived by a unanimous vote of city council members present at the 
meeting. In order to publish an ordinance by title and summary the ordinance must be approved by a 4/5ths vote. Ordinances go into effect once they 
are published in the city’s official newspaper. The planning commission must review and make a recommendation to the city council regarding any 
changes to the zoning code chapter 11. A public hearing, typically held by the planning commission, also is required for changes to chapter 11.  
 



DRAFT 12-20-18 Greenwood Ordinance ___   |   Page 1 of 3 
 

ORDINANCE NO. __ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA 
AMENDING GREENWOOD ORDINANCE CODE SECTION 1140.80 REGARDING TREES 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN: 

 
SECTION 1. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1140.80 subdivisions 3-7 are amended to read as follows:  
 
“Subd. 3. Property Owner Restrictions on Cutting of Trees. 
 

A.  Annual Permitted Tree Harvest - No property owner or their employees, independent contractors, or agents, shall cut, 
kill, disease, or permit the killing or cutting or infection of significant trees (as defined in subdivision 2D above) upon 
their property in excess of the number listed on the below table in any 1 calendar year without a variance pursuant to 
section 1155 being first obtained. The removal of significant trees as listed on the below table in any 1 calendar year, 
shall constitute the “annual permitted tree harvest.”  

  

Property size Number of significant trees allowed  
to be removed in any 1 calendar year 

Up to 1/4 acre (up to 10,890 sq ft) 1 
1/4 acre+ to 1/2 acre (10,891 sq ft to 21,780 sq ft) 2 
1/2 acre+ to 3/4 acre (21,781 sq ft to 32,670 sq ft) 3 
3/4 acre+ to 1 acre (32,671 sq ft to 43,560 sq ft)  4 

Follow the same pattern for properties larger than 1 acre 
  
B.  Non-Significant Trees & Noxious Trees may be cut or removed from property without limitation.  
 

C.  Tree Trimming - A property owner may trim an otherwise healthy tree in such a manner as to manage its growth, 
improve its appearance, or eliminate branches which encroach upon structures and improvements without permit first 
obtained, provided, however, that such trimming does not cause the tree to become diseased or will likely cause the 
tree to die. In the event such trimming is likely to cause the tree to become diseased or die, such activity shall be 
counted against the property owner’s “annual permitted tree harvest” per subdivision 3A. 

 
Subd. 4. Construction-Related Tree Cutting Permits. If the improvement of property necessitates the removal of trees for 
construction purposes, property owners and / or developers subsequent to issuance of a valid building permit may cut 
trees from a specific property in accordance with the following provisions, limitations, and conditions attached to such 
building permit: 
 

A.  The property owner / developer shall be limited to the property owner’s “annual permitted tree harvest” per subdivision 
3A in any given calendar year for construction-related tree cutting / harvesting, unless a permit under this subdivision 
is issued based upon a tree preservation plan prepared by the applicant and submitted to the attention of the building 
official in conjunction with a building permit application. The building permit application or a zoning code review shall 
not be considered complete unless and until a tree preservation plan has been submitted by the property owner, 
developer, or its agent. 

 

B.  Limitations on Construction-Related Tree Cutting. [This section reorganized to C and D below] 
 (1)  The city building official and / or the zoning administrator may impose restrictions on construction-related tree 

trimming or cutting: 
 

(a)  so as to preserve significant trees that would not otherwise need to be cut or harvested to permit access, 
grading, and construction-related activities;  

(b)  of “significant trees” so as to preserve and protect same in the course of construction; and 
 

Significant trees lost in the course of access, grading, and construction-related activities must be replaced in 
accordance with the tree replacement schedule per subdivision 7. 
 

B. C. Construction-Related Tree Cutting / Trimming Permit Types. The following construction-related tree cutting / 
trimming permits may be issued by the city: 

 

(1)  Home Addition / Accessory Structure Construction. In conjunction with an approved building permit to 
accommodate the expansion of an existing residence and / or the construction of an otherwise code permitted 
accessory structure, a property owner / developer may cut or remove up to 10% of the total diameter inches of 
signifcant trees on a property identified on a submitted tree preservation plan. 



DRAFT 12-20-18 Greenwood Ordinance ___   |   Page 2 of 3 
 

 

(2)  New Home Construction / General Property Development. In conjunction with an approved building permit for a 
new home construction and / or the razing of an existing home and the construction of a new home thereat, a 
property owner / developer may cut or remove up to 20% of the total diameter inches of signifcant trees on a 
property identified on a submitted tree preservation plan. 

 
B. C. Limitations on Construction-Related Tree Cutting. The city building official and / or the zoning administrator may 

impose restrictions on construction-related tree trimming or cutting so as to preserve significant trees that would not 
otherwise need to be cut or harvested to permit access, grading, and construction-related activities. 

 
D. Tree Replacement Required. Significant trees cut down in excess of the maximum permitted under subdivision 3 

hereof for construction-related tree cutting permits must lost in the course of access, grading, and construction-related 
activities be replaced in accordance with the tree replacement schedule per subdivision 7.  

 
D. E. Variance. In the event planned construction activity would necessitate the cutting of more than 10% of total diameter 

inches of trees identified in the tree preservation plan in conjunction with a home addition or accessory structure 
construction, or more than 20% of total diameter inches of trees identified in the tree preservation plan in conjunction 
with a new home development or general development, a variance pursuant to section 1155 must be first obtained. 
The variance, if approved, shall be conditioned upon the planting of replacement trees in accordance with the tree 
replacement schedules of this code. 

 
Subd. 5. Tree Preservation Plan Requirements. A tree preservation plan shall be prepared by a licensed land surveyor, 
civil engineer, arborist, landscape architect, or other person whose credentials are deemed acceptable by the city zoning 
administrator. Such tree preservation plan shall include the following: 
 

A.  A map (scale not less than 1" to 30') designating all existing structures, roads, utilities, driveways, and illustrating all 
significant trees (excluding noxious trees) by species: 

 

(1)  All deciduous trees (excluding noxious trees) on the property greater than  
 (a) 3 inches in diameter for hardwood trees, and  
 (b) 4 inches in diameter for softwood trees measured at 48" above grade; and  
(2)  All coniferous trees greater than 6 feet in height; and 
(3)  All significant trees (excluding noxious trees). 
 

B.  A written inventory of all trees included in the tree preservation plan map by type, size, and species and an indication 
of the trees that would be at risk or will be lost to grading and construction activities. 

 

C.  The tree preservation plan shall show how the remaining trees will be protected. 
 
Subd. 6. Subdivision Approval - Tree Replacement. No simple subdivision or full plat subdivision shall be approved by the 
city council except on condition that: 
 
A.  All “Significant Trees”; and  
 

B.  All trees to be cut down in excess of the maximum permitted under subdivision 4 3 hereof for construction-related tree 
cutting permits shall be replaced in accordance with the tree replacement schedule below.  

 
Subd. 7. Tree Replacement Schedule: 
 

A.  Replacement Trees Size Categories Defined:  
 

Replacement Trees Size Categories Defined   

 Size of Replacement Trees Required Per Category 
 A B C 

Deciduous Trees Not Less than 2" in 
diameter 

Not Less than 2.5" in 
diameter 

Not Less than 3" in 
diameter 

Coniferous Trees Not Less than 6' in 
height 

Not Less than 8' in 
height 

Not Less than 10' in 
height 

 
B.  Replacement of “Trees” or “Significant Trees.”  Where replacement of a tree or significant tree is required, the 

property owner, and their agent, shall be responsible for furnishing and planting the number and size of tree(s) 
identified in Category A, Category B, or Category C of the following schedules: 

 



DRAFT 12-20-18 Greenwood Ordinance ___   |   Page 3 of 3 
 

Replacement of “Trees” or “Significant Trees”       

  Quantity of Replacement Trees Required Per Category 

Size of Tree Damaged or Destroyed              A              or             B             or              C 
Coniferous: 1-1/2" diameter but less than 6' tall 1 – – 
Coniferous: 6' to 12' tall 2 1 – 
Coniferous: 12' to 24' tall 12" to less than 22" 
diameter (38" to 69" circ.) 4 2 1 

Coniferous: 24' or taller 22" diameter (69" circ.) or 
greater  8 4 2 

Deciduous, Hardwood: 1-1/2 " to less than 6" 
diameter         (5" to 18" circ.) 3 2 1 

Deciduous, Hardwood: 6" to less than 10" diameter              
(19" to 30" circ.) 4 3 2 

Deciduous, Hardwood: 10" to less than 20" diameter           
(31" to 62" circ.) 4 2 1 

Deciduous, Hardwood: 20" diameter (63" circ.) or 
greater 8 4 2 

Deciduous, Softwood: 1-1/2 " to less than 6" diameter           
(5" to 18" circ.) 3 2 1 

Deciduous, Softwood: 6" to less than 14" diameter              
(19" to 43" circ.) 4 3 2 

Deciduous, Softwood: 14" to less than 24" diameter           
(44" to 74" circ.) 4 2 1 

Deciduous, Softwood: 24" diameter (75" circ.) or 
greater 8 4 2 

 
 

A. C. Alternate Site. In the event a property does not offer a reasonable site for planting of replacement trees on the 
property, the owner shall pay to the city the fair market value of each replacement tree required per the tree 
replacement schedule including installation costs as determined by the city’s zoning administrator. 

 

B. D. Source of Replacement Trees. Replacement trees shall consist of “certified nursery stock” or state inspected 
transplant stock as defined by Minnesota statutes chapter 18 as amended. 

 

C. E. Tree Survival. Replacement trees shall be chosen with consideration given to the available soil types and available 
space such as to accommodate the anticipated natural growth and survival of the replacement tree.” 

 
SECTION 2. 
Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon publication according to law. 
 
Enacted by the city council of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _____________, 2019. 
 
____ AYES ____ NAYS 
 
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________ Attest: __________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor     Dana H. Young, City Clerk 
 
First reading: _____, 2019 
Second reading: _____, 2019 
Publication: _____, 2019 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 9A 

Agenda Date: 01-02-19 

Prepared by Deb Kind 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consider Request to Post No-Parking Signs by Meadville Lift Station 
 
Summary:	Greenwood resident, John Ekelund, 5085 Meadville Street, has requested that the city install two posts with 
"No Parking Between Signs" signs positioned on either side of the Meadville lift station near his property. Ekelund said, 
"The city keeps [the lift station area] plowed in the winter for access if there is a power outage, etc. [The problem is that] 
out-of-town vehicles, mostly pick up trucks, like to think they can park there nose in when they go out to ice fish.”  

The city code requires council approval to install street signage. Below is a motion for the council's consideration. 

Council Action: No action required. Potential motions … 
 
1. I move the city council (1) authorizes the installation of two posts with "No Parking Between Signs" signs positioned 

on either side of the Meadville lift station near 5085 Meadville Street; (2) directs that the signs be installed after the 
ground thaws; and (3) directs that the associated costs be paid from the general fund's sign budget. 

 
2. Do nothing or other motion. 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 11A-E 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Council Reports 
 
Summary: This is an opportunity for each council member to present updates and get input regarding various council 
assignments and projects.  
 
Related documents are included in the hard copy of the full council packet and in the electronic version of the packet 
available at www.greenwoodmn.com.  
 
Council Action: None required.  

 



Variance with Variance with Bulk Email
Month 2017 2018 Prior Month Prior Year List
12/16 - 1/15 12,599 10,441 -965 -2,158 173
1/16 - 2/15 9,758 14,039 3,598 4,281 173
2/16 - 3/15 8,996 9,974 -4,065 978 174
3/16 - 4/15 10,728 12,252 2,278 1,524 173
4/16 - 5/15 10,366 11,773 -479 1,407 173
5/16 - 6/15 8,301 9,836 -1,937 1,535 173
6/16 - 7/15 8,604 10,511 675 1,907 173
7/16 - 8/15 9,873 10,658 147 785 173
8/16 - 9/15 9,901 10,555 -103 654 173
9/16 - 10/15 10,357 10,439 -116 82 173
10/16 - 11/15 11,404 10,159 -280 -1,245 174
11/16 - 12/15 11,406 9,899 -260 -1,507

AVERAGE 10,191 10,878

POPULATION: 703
EMAIL ADDRESSES % OF POPULATION: 24.75%

Population source: www.metrocouncil.org, Data & Maps, Download Data, Population and Household Estimates
Population figure updated: 03-17-18

0 

2,000 

4,000 

6,000 

8,000 

10,000 

12,000 

14,000 

16,000 

City	of	Greenwood	
Website	Total	Hits	

2017 

2018 



Welcome, Debra Kind | ? Help | Logout

 
CONTENT TOOLS DATA CENTER SITE MANAGEMENT SECURITY

Get Report

Site Statistics
Use this reporting tool to see your site statistics for your public site for this month or the previous month. Statistics for the
Administration (or "admin") side of your site are not included in this report. Additionally, visits you make to your own site
while administering it are not included in these statistics. All data collected before the previous month has been purged
from our system and is not available for use; therefore, we recommend printing this report each month for your records.

The first report - Page Views by Section - shows total page views for each section. The second report - Unique Visitors by
Section - shows the total page views for each section without the return visitors (showing only views from unique IP
addresses). For example, if you browse to a page today, and then browse to that same page tomorrow, your viewing of
that page would only be counted once in the unique (second) report. 

Each report lists sections in page view order (highest number of page views first) and only lists sections that have had
traffic within the reporting period. It does not list those sections without traffic.

Begin Date 11/16/2018

End Date 12/15/2018

Report Name Page Views (Default)

Page Views by Section

Section Page Views Percent of Total
Default Home Page 6187 62.5%
Agendas, Minutes, Meeting Packets 624 6.3%
City Departments 289 2.92%
Welcome to Greenwood 248 2.51%
Planning Commission 234 2.36%
Code Book of Ordinances 173 1.75%
RFPs & Bids 167 1.69%
Mayor & City Council 151 1.53%
Assessments & Taxes 145 1.46%
Elections, Voting 108 1.09%
Budget & Finances 103 1.04%
Forms, Permits, Licenses 98 0.99%
Photo Gallery 87 0.88%
Links 80 0.81%
Spring Clean-Up Day 74 0.75%
Agendas, Minutes, Meetings 68 0.69%
Comp Plan 67 0.68%
Public Safety 67 0.68%
Garbage & Recycling 57 0.58%
St. Alban's Bay Lake Improvement District 56 0.57%
Lake Minnetonka 50 0.51%
Meetings 49 0.49%
Community Surveys 47 0.47%
Email Sign-Up 46 0.46%
Parks, Trails & Watercraft Amenities 43 0.43%
Watercraft Spaces 41 0.41%
SABLID Email Sign-Up 39 0.39%
Coyotes & Animal Services 37 0.37%
July 4th 31 0.31%
Search Results 30 0.3%
Toilet Drain Guide 29 0.29%

https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=ContentTools
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=DataCenter
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteManagement
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=Security
https://responsivehelp.govoffice.com/
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=Login&action=logout
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8F3A3A9D-5458-4CB6-BB1F-AC94BB9B09DF%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B030CFE4C-5016-4145-982B-BC20CF1CE9B0%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE8F16C03-E9EC-40F7-A931-F5A45B19576E%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B05D0F828-E762-44A3-BC47-B094E012C13F%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B41336A06-DF03-426F-BAC8-B478696E7ABE%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BB2F86E65-BD20-40B7-8A26-1B4DC4FF837A%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BFF4DABAE-9793-4C75-9595-89E365126209%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B937BBE21-87E7-4815-95EF-9E4DBD883B56%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5FD2DB20-C5E6-4466-BB1F-5137A3A383FA%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC4ED0441-B19F-4C17-8FAB-B27178681446%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC446C0E6-C85B-4D6B-9F2A-45390CDE8A69%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5AF5BE04-E22D-498B-8DF0-E4E97E512089%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B86561FCE-AB6E-4655-9D85-28D89FDF4185%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC0861CA3-9AD6-44B8-83A0-3830DDD789F7%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B3BFA3AB3-AA76-4A00-8754-141DBE33C293%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BEC7D78ED-9B90-469C-87DA-F45E8296634D%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B7D523E15-7556-4375-B814-673BCF885086%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BF7C1F295-9D1A-47F1-B520-906AEA4C1EF7%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B29DBC80E-711D-420C-8E7E-88949C90F651%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE04A1A51-136D-44C1-BD41-8FC4E61A774B%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B12A653D6-4378-49A7-A3FC-97A7073E27C9%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5EFC3CE3-C0E6-4AFE-BC8B-FD662DC0B6DE%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B45BFFFAD-A74F-4A5C-881D-1DDEB689390B%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B184AC25F-91BE-4826-A9F5-B388A80DC23E%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B08153459-A93B-48DE-A049-7A47AB3B7C7D%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B972AEC2C-D900-4CBB-AA9A-CE827BE448DC%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE2CCCFEF-5547-4416-81A6-0ACBB34571E6%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B07F329B3-E4DB-4917-ABEE-96B4435790CB%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B6428E068-96A6-40C7-9082-13636C643E44%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BA06C3108-5700-4A55-A324-1E2C07C9DC78%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1


Fire Department 28 0.28%
Old Log Events 28 0.28%
Smoke Testing 28 0.28%
Emergency Preparedness 27 0.27%
Homesteading 26 0.26%
News, Events 25 0.25%
Luck O' the Lake 23 0.23%
Meetings on TV 23 0.23%
Tree Contractors 22 0.22%
Finances, Taxes, Assessments 22 0.22%
Sewer, Stormwater, Water, Garbage, Recycling 21 0.21%
Recreation, Amenities 21 0.21%
Tour de Tonka 19 0.19%
City Newsletters 19 0.19%
Library Events 17 0.17%
Well Water 15 0.15%
Christkindlsmarkt 10 0.1%
TOTAL 9899 100%

Unique IPs by Section

Section Unique IPs Percent of Total IPs
Default Home Page 2068 47.17%
Agendas, Minutes, Meeting Packets 247 5.63%
City Departments 218 4.97%
Welcome to Greenwood 145 3.31%
Code Book of Ordinances 107 2.44%
Mayor & City Council 99 2.26%
Planning Commission 96 2.19%
Assessments & Taxes 82 1.87%
Elections, Voting 80 1.82%
Forms, Permits, Licenses 72 1.64%
Photo Gallery 64 1.46%
Comp Plan 53 1.21%
Spring Clean-Up Day 51 1.16%
Public Safety 50 1.14%
Agendas, Minutes, Meetings 49 1.12%
St. Alban's Bay Lake Improvement District 44 1%
Garbage & Recycling 42 0.96%
Community Surveys 41 0.94%
Lake Minnetonka 41 0.94%
Parks, Trails & Watercraft Amenities 39 0.89%
Budget & Finances 39 0.89%
RFPs & Bids 39 0.89%
Email Sign-Up 37 0.84%
Meetings 37 0.84%
Watercraft Spaces 36 0.82%
Coyotes & Animal Services 33 0.75%
Links 33 0.75%
Toilet Drain Guide 27 0.62%
July 4th 26 0.59%
Fire Department 26 0.59%
Smoke Testing 26 0.59%
Emergency Preparedness 25 0.57%
SABLID Email Sign-Up 25 0.57%
Meetings on TV 23 0.52%
Old Log Events 23 0.52%
Luck O' the Lake 22 0.5%
Search Results 22 0.5%
Tree Contractors 21 0.48%
News, Events 21 0.48%

https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE32365BF-D669-49D0-983D-2387DB8F6735%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BB4737361-6BA3-43DC-893C-D8AE06A935AA%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B92C503B2-495E-4AB9-88DC-2432B12AC82B%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B2EE6F67F-9BE4-4076-8A33-F589B91B72C4%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B86A708E7-BE00-49D5-B4E1-C6C442D57AA8%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BDC72D100-6B66-4675-AAD3-BCEA56CADF38%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B54847F9E-6D9F-405E-B61A-B242A5B61F4B%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BF458B3B5-588F-49DF-ACE1-F64600152C67%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BCB8A0ECB-76AF-4FAD-B8AC-08ED37459E8B%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8C357980-B476-4C47-A644-4438BBABA5FA%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BD3D9ABB0-CC92-4C54-89F3-D3C8FC9DACA8%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE36FF7B9-855A-4B43-A3D3-268F500FEA36%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B81865F8A-E58F-4546-80DA-616E969899AF%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B09C69529-46DA-45C3-9D5A-F642FC7ACBC9%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BA277312C-3B84-4C04-9407-A83B80253CEB%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8A0FD9DB-EF26-4B80-AB4F-C79C6F905931%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B0DE6A14D-4E59-4392-8760-3555039C657B%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2018&EndDate=12/15/2018&report=1


" Contact Us | # 1 (888) 353-3221 | ? Help | $ Blog

Generate Download File (.csv) for the current report: Generate and Download

Recreation, Amenities 20 0.46%
Sewer, Stormwater, Water, Garbage, Recycling 20 0.46%
Homesteading 20 0.46%
City Newsletters 19 0.43%
Finances, Taxes, Assessments 18 0.41%
Tour de Tonka 18 0.41%
Library Events 16 0.36%
Well Water 14 0.32%
Christkindlsmarkt 10 0.23%
TOTAL 4384 100%

Done

https://govoffice.com/techsupport
tel:1-888-353-3221
https://responsivehelp.govoffice.com/
http://blog.govoffice.com/
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteManagement


  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: FYI 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: FYI Items in Council Packet 
  
Summary: The attached items are included in the council packet for the council's information (FYI) only. FYI items 
typically include planning commission minutes and other items of interest to the council. When the agenda is approved at 
the beginning of the meeting, any council member may request to move an FYI item to the regular agenda for further 
discussion. Moved items will be placed under Other Business on the agenda.  
  
Council Action: No council action is needed for FYI items. 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2018 

7:00 P.M. 

 1 

  
1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
 
Members Present: Chairman Pat Lucking, Kelsey Nelson, and David Steingas 
 
Others Present: Council Liaison Kristi Conrad and Zoning Administrator Dale Cooney 

 
Absent: Commissioners Dean Barta and Jennifer Gallagher 
 
2. MINUTES – November 14, 2018 
 
Motion by Steingas to approve the minutes as written. Motion was seconded by Nelson. Motion 
carried 3-0. 

 
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
3a. Consider variance and conditional use permit request of Roland and Ranee Jacobus to 
encroach into the north and south side yard setbacks, and to regrade portions of the lake 
yard in conjunction with the construction of a new house at 5290 Meadville 
Street.―Section 1120.15 of the Greenwood Zoning Code requires side yard setbacks of 8 feet. 
Section 1140.19 (2) requires a conditional use permit for any the grading or site/lot topography 
alteration request involving more than 200 square feet of surface area, or involving more than 7 cubic 
yards of material. 
 
Lucking introduced the agenda item and opened the public hearing. 
 
Ranee Jacobus, applicant, said that the existing house is nonconforming and 75 years old and 
that it is in need of many repairs. She said that the current structure is 36 feet wide and that the 
proposed house would be 30 feet wide and pulled away from the property lines by two feet on 
each side. She said that the house would be substantially on the same footprint. Jacobus said 
that the property has been neglected and the lakeshore is covered in buckthorn and that there 
are a lot of issues that need to be cleaned up. She said that the self-constructed walkout for the 
house has created structural and drainage issues. Jacobus said that they would completely clean 
up the lakeshore with old nonconforming structures and have a more ecologically sensitive 
approach to the property. 
 
Jason Letourneau of Letourneau Design Associates, architect for the applicant, said that there 
are existing dock and retaining walls that are falling into the lake and that just cleaning up these 
issues would likely trigger the city process for grading. 
 
Bob Newman of 5230 Meadville Street asked about the lateral movement of the house on the 
property. Letourneau said that it would be centered on the property with wider setbacks. Jacobus 
said that the structure would be 4 feet narrower. 
 
Jeffrey Solum of 5280 Meadville Street said that anything is better than what is there now. He 
said that he likes that they are moving away from the property lines. He said that this house is in 
front of him by 24 feet and asked if the house could be moved back to match that setback. He 
said that it would be preferable if the houses were lined up. 
 
Cooney said that the city could not require that the house be moved back. He said that, when 
houses are rebuilt they are typically built right up to the lake setback and that when the house at 
5280 Meadville is rebuilt in the future, it would likely be built at the 50 foot setback too. 
 
 
 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2018 

7:00 P.M. 

 2 

Jacobus said that the existing garage would need to come down to construct the new house and 
wanted to get the planning commission’s opinion on their preference if the garage were to be 
slightly relocated. She said that she did not think there was room to get it completely out of the 
right-of-way. 
 
Lucking closed the public hearing. 
 
Lucking asked what the law is around encroachments into the public right-of-way. Cooney said 
that he had thought this would be regulated as a legal nonconforming structure but that he would 
follow up with the city attorney. 
 
Conrad said that she thought the proposal did a nice job. 
 
Steingas said that he was less enthusiastic and that the rules are the rules. He said that he did 
not like the house within the setbacks or having the garage in the street. He said that they 
benefited from the hardcover of the garage in the street and that he also did not like the garage 
being right next to the neighbor’s property. 
 
Lucking said that they could not build a house that meets both the setback requirements and the 
minimum house width requirements. Steingas said that he understands. 
 
Steingas asked about reducing to a two-car garage. Letourneau said that that would impact the 
value of the house. Jacobus said that several of the garages in this area are in the right-of-way. 
 
Steingas said that he would like to see the garage be more conforming for fire and safety issues. 
Jacobus said that, given the cost of the neighborhood, and the size of the house, she would like 
the existing garage space for storage. She said that it is a wide garage, but not deep enough for 
storage. She said that it would make sense to move it against the marina property. 
 
Lucking said that the garage issue is not part of this current request and the planning commission 
shouldn’t get too sidetracked about that. 
 
Jacobus said that there is a practical difficulty and that she could rebuild the existing house and 
still be on top of her neighbors and not be able to get to the back yard. She said that she tried to 
move towards conformance with the proposal. 
 
Nelson said that she liked the house plan and that it would be an improvement. 
 
Conrad said that brining the hardcover down from existing to be compliant is a huge 
accomplishment regardless of the garage issue. 
 
Steingas said that he would have preferred a slightly narrower house that would be approximately 
five feet from the property lines, but that he was okay with it. 
 
Lucking said that he likes the plan in that they moved it back from the property lines and kept it 
under the volume limitations. 
 
Motion by Steingas to recommend approval of the request based on the recommendation and 
findings of staff. Motion was seconded by Nelson. Motion carried 3-0. 
 
3b. Consider the conditional use permit request of Todd and Amy Wilkinson for 21800 Byron 
Circle to regrade the lake yard areas of the property ―Section 1140.19 (2) of the City Zoning 
Code requires a conditional use permit for any the grading or site/lot topography alteration 
request involving more than 200 square feet of surface area, or involving more than 7 cubic yards 
of material. 
 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2018 

7:00 P.M. 

 3 

Lucking introduced the agenda item and opened the public hearing. Hearing no public comments, 
Lucking closed the public hearing. 
 
Lucking said that he had difficulty understanding what is being proposed. 
 
Cooney said that the applicant is proposing to repair and replace retaining walls within the bluff 
and that grading and new retaining walls are not allowed within the bluff area and bluff impact 
zone unless it is related to stairways. He said that there are also several existing nonconforming 
retaining walls that could be repaired/replaced, but not expanded. 
 
Lucking said that it is unclear what is existing and what is proposed. He said that he would prefer 
to have the plans updated and review it at the next meeting. 
 
Motion by Steingas to take an additional 60 days to review the request based on the fact that the 
plans did not clearly identify the extent of the work. Motion was seconded by Lucking. Motion 
carried 3-0. 
 
3c. Consider preliminary plat application (subdivision) request of Lesley J. Adam, 
consultant for the homeowners, to reconfigure the property lines for the properties at 5155 
Weeks Road, 4940 St. Albans Bay Road, and 4950 St. Albans Bay Road.― The request is 
governed by Chapter 6 of the Greenwood Code of Ordinances. 
 
Lucking introduced the agenda item and opened the public hearing. 
 
Leslie Adam, applicant for the property owners, said that this was a replat of existing lots and that 
no new lots were being created. She said that there would be no expansion or creation of any 
nonconformities. 
 
Nelson asked about 4940 St. Albans Bay Road that has a lot for sale. Adam said that that listing 
is what prompted this lot reconfiguration.  
 
Lucking asked if the property owners were still planning to subdivide 4940 St. Albans Bay Road. 
She said that any future sale or subdivision of that property is beyond the scope of this 
transaction. 
 
Steingas said that the replat helps a great deal by getting rid of one lake flag lot and making a 
better property at 5155 Weeks Road. 
 
Nelson said that she thought it was a good proposal. 
 
Conrad asked if there had been consideration in removing the flag access to 4950 St. Albans Bay 
Road and having access off of Weeks. Adam said that had not been considered. Steingas said 
that there was a severe grade change and that the access would be difficult. Conrad said she 
thought it would be a cleaner parcel. 
 
Lucking closed the public hearing. 
 
Motion by Steingas to approve the request based on the recommendation and findings of staff. 
Motion was seconded by Nelson. Motion carried 3-0. 
 
4. NEW BUSINESS 
 
5. LIAISON REPORT 
 
Conrad said that she picked up the wrong packet when she left the house and asked if Cooney 
would summarize the city council decisions from last week. 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2018 

7:00 P.M. 

 4 

 
Cooney said that the simple subdivision request at 5135 and 5125 Weeks Road was approved.  
 
Cooney said that the CUP grading request at 4980 Meadville Street was also approved. He noted 
that the city council would like to see any required stormwater mitigation for a proposal prior to it 
going before the city council. 
 
Cooney said that the CUP request for grading and a pool at 5175 Queens Circle was approved 
and that the applicants provided the required mitigation to keep the expanded runoff on the 
property. 
 
Cooney said that the CUP and variance request at 5260 Meadville Street was approved. He said 
that the applicant revised the building volume to be less and that the city council felt that a 
practical difficulty was warranted in this case due to the exposed lower level. 
 
Cooney said that the updated grading ordinance was approved and that a CUP was triggered 
when a project increased or decreased the average grade (existing compared to final conditions) 
by more than 1 foot in any 300 square foot area. 
 
6. ADJOURN 
Motion by Steingas to adjourn the meeting. Nelson seconded the motion. Motion carried 3-0. The 
meeting was adjourned at 8:23 p.m. 
 
Respectively Submitted, 
Dale Cooney - Zoning Administrator 


	2019 01-02 Agenda
	- MEMO Consent no date
	2018 12-05 Minutes
	City of Greenwood CD sheet.xls
	November Cash Summary.xls
	December Payables Check Register
	December Payables for Council Approval
	January Payroll Check Register
	Res 42-18 5260 Approval Meadville - Variance
	Res 01-19 Dates.xlsx
	Res 02-19 Appointments
	Res 03-19 Comp Plan
	- MEMO City Engineer
	2018-12-20 Sanitary Sewer I & I Summary
	- MEMO 21200 Minnetonka Blvd
	Res 37-18 21200 Minnetonka Blvd
	- MEMO Weeks St Albans subdivision
	- Staff Report Weeks St Albans Subdivsion staff report
	11.15.2018 Preliminary Re-Plat Submission
	1.  11.15.18 Ltr to City re preliminary plat submission
	2.  Application for Preliminary Re-Plat
	3.  Frauenshuh Third Addition Preliminary Plat

	Gr Res 04-19 Weeks St Albans Preliminar Plat
	- MEMO 5290 Meadville
	- Memo Staff Report 5290 Meadville Jan 2019
	5290 Meadville application and attachments
	5290 Meadville Existing conditions survey
	5290 Meadville Exterior Elevations
	5290 Meadville floor plans 2
	5290 Meadville floor plans
	5290 Meadville overlay
	5290 Meadville Proposed Survey
	5290 Meadville Tree Inventory
	Res 05-19 CUP 5290 Meadville
	Res 06-19 Variance 5290 Meadville
	- MEMO 21800 Byron Circle
	- Staff Report 21800 Byron CUP PC
	21800 Byron Circle application and attachments
	21800 Byron Circle site plan
	21800 Byron Circle survey and enlargement
	- MEMO Tree Ordinance
	Ord __ Trees
	- MEMO No Parking Sign Request
	- MEMO Council Reports no date
	2018 11-16 to 12-15 Web Chart.xls
	2018 12-15 Web Report
	- MEMO FYI no date
	December PC Minutes 2018

